PROVECTUS PHARMACEUTICALS INC Form DEF 14A April 30, 2012 Table of Contents

# **UNITED STATES**

# SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

**WASHINGTON, DC 20549** 

# **SCHEDULE 14A**

#### **SCHEDULE 14A INFORMATION**

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Filed by the Registrant x Filed by a Party other than the Registrant "

Check the appropriate box:

- " Preliminary Proxy Statement
- " Confidential, For Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2))
- x Definitive Proxy Statement
- " Definitive Additional Materials
- " Soliciting Material Pursuant to Rule 14a-12

# PROVECTUS PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

(Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Charter)

Not Applicable (Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement, if Other Than the Registrant)

Payment of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box):

- x No fee required.
- " Fee computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(1) and 0-11.
  - (1) Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:

(2)	Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:
(3)	Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (set forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined):
(4)	Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:
(5)	Total fee paid:
Fee	paid previously with preliminary materials.
Che	ck box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for which the offsetting fee paid previously. Identify the previous filing by Registration Statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing.
(1)	Amount previously paid:
(2)	Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:
(3)	Filing party:
(4)	Date filed:

#### **Table of Contents**

7327 Oak Ridge Highway

Knoxville, TN 37931

phone 866/594-5999

fax 866/998-0005

#### Dear Stockholder:

You are cordially invited to attend the 2012 annual meeting of stockholders, which will be held on Thursday, June 28, 2012 at 4:00 p.m. Eastern Time at the offices of Baker, Donelson, Bearman, Caldwell & Berkowitz, PC located at 265 Brookview Centre Way, Suite 600, Knoxville, Tennessee 37919.

The Notice and Proxy Statement on the following pages contain details concerning the business to come before the meeting.

Regardless of whether you plan to attend the 2012 annual meeting in person, please complete, sign and date the enclosed proxy card and return it promptly in the accompanying postage-paid envelope. I look forward to personally meeting all stockholders who are able to attend.

Peter R. Culpepper

Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operating Officer and Secretary

#### YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT

TO ENSURE THAT YOU ARE REPRESENTED AT THE 2012 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS, PLEASE COMPLETE, SIGN, DATE AND PROMPTLY RETURN THE ENCLOSED PROXY IN THE ACCOMPANYING ENVELOPE, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER YOU PLAN TO ATTEND THE 2012 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS IN PERSON. NO ADDITIONAL POSTAGE IS NECESSARY IF THE PROXY IS MAILED IN THE UNITED STATES. YOU MAY REVOKE YOUR PROXY AT ANY TIME BEFORE IT IS VOTED AT THE MEETING.

#### **Table of Contents**

7327 Oak Ridge Highway

Knoxville, TN 37931

phone 866/594-5999

fax 866/998-0005

#### NOTICE OF 2012 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

### TO BE HELD ON JUNE 28, 2012

To the Stockholders of Provectus Pharmaceuticals, Inc.:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that we will hold the 2012 annual meeting of stockholders of Provectus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. on Thursday, June 28, 2012 at 4:00 p.m. Eastern Time, at the offices of Baker, Donelson, Bearman, Caldwell & Berkowitz, PC located at 265 Brookview Centre Way, Suite 600, Knoxville, Tennessee 37919. The 2012 annual meeting is being held for the following purposes:

- 1. To elect five directors to serve on our Board of Directors for a one-year term;
- 2. To approve the Provectus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 2012 Stock Plan;
- 3. To conduct an advisory vote to approve the compensation of our named executive officers; and
- 4. To ratify the selection of BDO USA, LLP as our independent auditor for 2012. Stockholders also will transact any other business that properly comes before the 2012 annual meeting of stockholders.

### OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE FOR PROPOSALS 1 THROUGH 4.

Only stockholders of record as of the close of business on April 30, 2012 will be entitled to notice of and to vote at the 2012 annual meeting of stockholders and any adjournment thereof.

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to Be Held on June 28, 2012. This Proxy Statement and our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011 are available at http://www.pvct.com/annual\_reports.html.

By order of our Board of Directors,

Peter R. Culpepper

Secretary

April 30, 2012

Knoxville, Tennessee

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE 2012 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS	2
What is the purpose of the 2012 Annual Meeting?	2
Who is entitled to vote?	2
Am I entitled to vote if my shares are held in street name?	2
What constitutes a quorum?	2
What happens if a quorum is not present at the 2012 annual meeting?	3
How do I vote?	3
Can I change my vote after I return my proxy card?	3
What are the Board s recommendations?	3
What happens if I do not specify how my shares are to be voted?	3
Will any other business be conducted at the 2012 annual meeting?	3
What vote is required to approve each item?	4
How will Abstentions and Broker Non-Votes be Treated?	4
STOCK OWNERSHIP	5
Directors, Executive Officers, and Other Stockholders	5
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance	6
INFORMATION ABOUT OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS	7
How does our Board of Directors operate?	7
How often did our Board of Directors meet in 2011?	7
Director Nominations	7
Report of our Board of Directors Acting as our Audit Committee	8
COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS	10
Compensation Components	11
Base Salary & Employment Agreements	11
Bonus Awards	11
Defined Benefit Plan and 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan and Other Benefits	11
<u>Long-Term Incentives</u>	12
Potential Payments upon Termination or Change in Control	12
Consideration and Effect of the Results of the Most Recent Stockholder Advisory Vote on Executive Compensation in Determining	
Compensation Policies and Decisions	13
Compensation-Related Risk Assessment	14
Conclusion	14
COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION	14
SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE	15
OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT 2011 FISCAL YEAR-END	16

Table of Contents	
OPTION EXERCISES AND STOCK VESTED	17
EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION	17
Director Compensation Table for 2011	17 18
COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION	18
PROPOSAL 1 - ELECTION OF DIRECTORS  Director Nominees  Transactions with Director Nominees	19 19 20
PROPOSAL 2 - ADOPTION OF THE PROVECTUS PHARMACEUTICALS, INC. 2012 STOCK PLAN	21
PROPOSAL 3 - ADVISORY VOTE TO APPROVE THE COMPENSATION OF OUR NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS	27
PROPOSAL 4 - RATIFICATION OF SELECTION OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR  General  Audit and Non-Audit Services	28 28 28
OTHER INFORMATION CONCERNING MANAGEMENT  Executive Officers  Code of Ethics	30 30 30
OTHER MATTERS	30
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION Solicitation of Proxies Mailing Address of Principal Executive Office Stockholder Proposals for Including in Proxy Statement for 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders Other Stockholder Proposals for Presentation at 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders	31 31 31 31
APPENDIX A	A-1

7327 Oak Ridge Highway

Knoxville, TN 37931

phone 865/769-4011

fax 865/769-4013

#### PROXY STATEMENT FOR

#### 2012 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

#### TO BE HELD ON JUNE 28, 2012

We are delivering these proxy materials to solicit proxies on behalf of the Board of Directors of Provectus Pharmaceuticals, Inc., for the annual meeting of stockholders to be held on Thursday, June 28, 2012, beginning at 4:00 p.m. Eastern Time, at 265 Brookview Centre Way, Suite 600, Knoxville, Tennessee.

We are mailing this proxy statement, together with a form of proxy and our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, beginning on April 30, 2012.

We will refer to your company throughout this Proxy Statement as we, us, the Company or Provectus.

At the meeting, our stockholders will vote on proposals to (1) elect five directors to serve on our Board of Directors for a one-year term; (2) approve the Provectus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 2012 Stock Plan (the 2012 Stock Plan ); (3) conduct an advisory vote to approve the compensation of our named executive officers; and (4) ratify the selection of BDO USA, LLP as our independent auditor for 2012. The proposals are set forth in the accompanying Notice of 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and are described in more detail in this Proxy Statement. Stockholders also will transact any other business, not known or determined at the time of this proxy solicitation that properly comes before the 2012 annual meeting of stockholders, although our Board of Directors knows of no such other business to be presented.

### OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE FOR PROPOSALS 1 THROUGH 4.

When you submit your proxy by executing and returning the enclosed proxy card, you will authorize the proxy holders Peter R. Culpepper and Linda M. Crouch-McCreadie to vote as proxy all your shares of common stock or 8% convertible preferred stock and otherwise to act on your behalf at the 2012 annual meeting of stockholders and any adjournment thereof, in accordance with the instructions set forth therein. These persons also will have discretionary authority to vote your shares on any other business that properly comes before the meeting. They also may vote your shares to adjourn the meeting and will be authorized to vote your shares at any adjournment of the meeting.

#### YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT

TO ENSURE THAT YOU ARE REPRESENTED AT THE 2012 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS, PLEASE COMPLETE, SIGN, DATE AND PROMPTLY RETURN THE ENCLOSED PROXY IN THE ACCOMPANYING ENVELOPE, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER YOU PLAN TO ATTEND THE 2012 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS IN PERSON. NO ADDITIONAL POSTAGE IS NECESSARY IF THE PROXY IS MAILED IN THE UNITED STATES. YOU MAY REVOKE YOUR PROXY AT ANY TIME BEFORE IT IS VOTED AT THE MEETING.

#### OUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE 2012 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

#### What is the purpose of the 2012 Annual Meeting?

At the 2012 annual meeting, stockholders will act upon the following matters:

- 1. To elect five directors to serve on our Board of Directors for a one-year term;
- 2. To approve our 2012 Stock Plan;
- 3. To conduct an advisory vote to approve the compensation of our named executive officers; and
- 4. To ratify the selection of BDO USA, LLP as our independent auditor for 2012. Stockholders also will transact any other business, not known or determined at the time of this proxy solicitation that properly comes before the 2012 annual meeting of stockholders, although our Board of Directors knows of no such other business to be presented.

#### Who is entitled to vote?

Only stockholders of record at the close of business on April 30, 2012, the record date for the 2012 annual meeting, are entitled to receive notice of the 2012 annual meeting and to vote the shares of common stock and 8% convertible preferred stock that they held on that date at the 2012 annual meeting. Each outstanding share of common stock, par value \$.001 per share, and of 8% convertible preferred stock, par value \$.001 per share, entitles its holder to cast one vote on each matter to be voted on at the 2012 annual meeting. The shares of common stock and 8% convertible preferred stock will vote together as a single class.

### Am I entitled to vote if my shares are held in street name?

If you are the beneficial owner of shares held in street name by a brokerage firm, bank, or other nominee, such entity, as the record holder of the shares, is required to vote the shares in accordance with your instructions. If you do not give instructions to your nominee, it will nevertheless be entitled to vote your shares on discretionary items but will not be permitted to do so on non-discretionary items. Proposals 1 through 3 are non-discretionary items for which a nominee will not have discretion to vote in the absence of voting instructions from you. However, Proposal 4 is a discretionary item on which your nominee will be entitled to vote your shares even in the absence of instructions from you.

#### What constitutes a quorum?

The presence at the 2012 annual meeting, in person or by proxy, of the holders of a majority of the shares of common stock and 8% convertible preferred stock outstanding on the record date will constitute a quorum. As of March 31, 2012, there were 110,935,981 outstanding shares of common stock and 3,431,665 outstanding shares of 8% convertible preferred stock, for a total of 114,367,646 shares of stock outstanding. Shares held by stockholders present at the 2012 annual meeting in person or represented by proxy who elect to abstain from voting nonetheless will be included in the calculation of the number of shares considered present at the 2012 annual meeting.

#### **Table of Contents**

#### What happens if a quorum is not present at the 2012 annual meeting?

If a quorum is not present at the scheduled time of the meeting, the holders of a majority of the shares of common stock and 8% convertible preferred stock present in person or represented by proxy at the meeting may adjourn the meeting to another place, date, or time until a quorum is present. The place, date, and time of the adjourned meeting will be announced when the adjournment is taken, and no other notice will be given unless the adjournment is for more than thirty days, or if after the adjournment a new record date is fixed for the adjourned meeting.

#### How do I vote?

If you complete and properly sign the accompanying proxy card and return it to us, the proxy holders named on the proxy card will vote your shares as you direct. If you are a registered stockholder and attend the 2012 annual meeting, you may deliver your completed proxy card or vote in person at the 2012 annual meeting. If you hold your shares in a brokerage account or in street name and you wish to vote at the 2012 annual meeting, you will need to obtain a proxy from the broker or other nominee who holds your shares.

#### Can I change my vote after I return my proxy card?

Yes. Even after you have submitted your proxy card, you may change your vote at any time before the proxy is exercised by filing with the Secretary either a notice of revocation or a duly executed proxy card bearing a later date. If you are a street name stockholder, you must contact your broker or other nominee and follow its instructions if you wish to change your vote. The powers of the proxy holders will be suspended if you attend the 2012 annual meeting in person and so request, although your attendance at the 2012 annual meeting will not by itself revoke a previously granted proxy.

#### What are the Board s recommendations?

Our Board of Directors unanimously recommends that you vote:

- 1. FOR the election of five directors to serve on our Board of Directors for a one-year term;
- 2. FOR the approval of our 2012 Stock Plan;
- 3. FOR the advisory vote to approve the compensation of our named executive officers; and
- FOR ratification of the selection of BDO USA, LLP as our independent auditor for 2012.

### What happens if I do not specify how my shares are to be voted?

If you submit a proxy but do not indicate any voting instructions, your shares will be voted FOR each of Proposals 1 through 4.

#### Will any other business be conducted at the 2012 annual meeting?

As of the date hereof, our Board of Directors knows of no business that will be presented at the meeting other than the proposals described in this Proxy Statement. If any other business is properly brought before the 2012 annual meeting, the proxy holders will vote your shares in accordance with their best judgment.

3

#### **Table of Contents**

#### What vote is required to approve each item?

- 1. The director nominees will be elected to serve on our Board of Directors for a term of one year if they receive a plurality of the votes on the shares of common stock and 8% convertible preferred stock present in person or represented by proxy at the 2012 annual meeting and entitled to vote on the subject matter. This means that the director nominees will be elected if they receive more votes than any other person at the 2012 annual meeting. If you vote to Withhold Authority with respect to the election of one or more director nominees, your shares of common stock and 8% convertible preferred stock will not be voted with respect to the person or persons indicated, although they will be counted for the purpose of determining whether there is a quorum at the meeting.
- 2. The approval of our 2012 Stock Plan will be approved if a majority of the shares of common stock and 8% convertible preferred stock present in person or represented by proxy at the 2012 annual meeting and entitled to vote on the subject matter are voted in favor of the proposal.
- 3. The advisory vote to approve the compensation of our named executive officers will be approved if a majority of the shares of common stock and 8% convertible preferred stock present in person or represented by proxy at the 2012 annual meeting and entitled to vote on the subject matter are voted in favor of the proposal.
- 4. The selection of BDO USA, LLP as our independent auditor for 2012 will be ratified if a majority of the shares of common stock and 8% convertible preferred stock present in person or represented by proxy at the meeting and entitled to vote on the subject matter are voted in favor of the proposal.

#### How will Abstentions and Broker Non-Votes be Treated?

You do not have the option of abstaining from voting on Proposal 1, but you may abstain from voting on Proposals 2 through 4. With respect to Proposal 1, because the directors are elected by a plurality vote, an abstention will have no effect on the outcome of the vote and, therefore, is not offered as a voting option on the proposal. In the case of an abstention on Proposals 2 through 4, your shares of common stock and 8% convertible preferred stock would be included in the number of shares of common stock and 8% convertible preferred stock considered present at the meeting for the purpose of determining whether there is a quorum. Because your shares of common stock and 8% convertible preferred stock would be voted but not in favor of Proposals 2 through 4, your abstention would have the same effect as a negative vote in determining the outcome of the vote on the proposal.

Broker non-votes occur when a brokerage firm, bank, or other nominee does not vote shares that it holds in street name on behalf of the beneficial owner because the beneficial owner has not provided voting instructions to the nominee with respect to a non-discretionary item. Proposals 1 through 3 are non-discretionary items for which a nominee will not have discretion to vote in the absence of voting instructions from you. However, Proposal 4 is a discretionary item on which your nominee will be entitled to vote your shares of common stock and 8% convertible preferred stock even in the absence of instructions from you. Accordingly, it is possible for there to be broker non-votes with respect to Proposals 1 through 3, but there will not be broker non-votes with regard to Proposal 4. In the case of a broker non-vote, your shares of common stock and 8% convertible preferred stock would be included in the number of shares of common stock and 8% convertible preferred stock would be included in the number of shares of common vote, being shares of common stock and 8% convertible preferred stock not entitled to vote, would not have any effect on the outcome of the vote on Proposals 1 through 3.

4

#### STOCK OWNERSHIP

#### Directors, Executive Officers, and Other Stockholders

The following table provides information about the beneficial ownership of common stock as of March 31, 2012, by each of our directors, each of our executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table of this proxy statement, all of our directors and executive officers as a group, and each person whom we believe beneficially owns more than 5% of our outstanding common stock. Each outstanding share of common stock entitles its holder to cast one vote on each matter to be voted on at the 2012 annual meeting, and holders of shares of 8% convertible preferred stock are entitled to vote their shares of 8% convertible preferred stock on an as-converted basis with the holders of shares of common stock. Holders of 8% convertible preferred stock will be entitled to cast one vote on each matter to be voted at the 2012 annual meeting and will not vote as a separate class.

Name and Address <sup>(1)</sup>	Amount and Nature of Beneficial Ownership <sup>(2)</sup>	Percentage of Class <sup>(3)</sup>
Directors and Executive Officers:	·	
H. Craig Dees	$5,947,859^{(4)}$	5.2%
Peter R. Culpepper	$4,175,000^{(5)}$	3.6%
Timothy C. Scott	5,905,966(6)	5.1%
Eric A. Wachter	6,555,685 <sup>(7)</sup>	5.8%
Alfred E. Smith IV	50,000 (8)	*
Kelly M. McMasters	200,000 (9)	*
All directors and executive officers as a group (6 persons)	22,834,510(10)	18.2%
Other Stockholders:		
Revelation Special Situations Fund Ltd (f/k/a Osmium Special Situations Fund Ltd) Canon s Court, 22 Victoria Street,	<i>a</i>	
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda	5,802,323 <sup>(11)</sup>	5.1%

<sup>\*</sup> Less than 1% of the outstanding shares of common stock.

<sup>(1)</sup> If no address is given, the named individual is an officer or director of Provectus Pharmaceuticals, Inc., whose business address is 7327 Oak Ridge Highway, Knoxville, TN 37931.

Shares of common stock that a person has the right to acquire within 60 days of March 31, 2012 are deemed outstanding for computing the percentage ownership of the person having the right to acquire such shares, but are not deemed outstanding for computing the percentage ownership of any other person. Except as indicated by a note, each stockholder listed in the table has sole voting and investment power as to the shares owned by that person.

<sup>(3)</sup> As of March 31, 2012, there were 110,935,981 shares of common stock issued and outstanding.

<sup>(4)</sup> Dr. Dees beneficial ownership includes 4,493,750 shares of common stock subject to options which are exercisable within 60 days.

<sup>(5)</sup> Mr. Culpepper s beneficial ownership includes 3,497,958 shares of common stock subject to options which are exercisable within 60 days.

#### **Table of Contents**

- Or. Scott s beneficial ownership includes 55,996 shares of common stock held by Scott Family Investment Limited Partnership, a limited partnership established for the benefit of Dr. Scott s family, and 4,450,000 shares of common stock subject to options which are exercisable within 60 days.
- (7) Dr. Wachter's beneficial ownership includes 4,867 shares of common stock held by the Eric A. Wachter 1998 Charitable Remainder Unitrust and 1,824,248 shares of common stock subject to options which are exercisable within 60 days.
- (8) Mr. Smith s beneficial ownership includes 50,000 shares of common stock subject to options which are exercisable within 60 days.
- (9) Dr. McMasters beneficial ownership includes 200,000 shares of common stock subject to options which are exercisable within 60 days.
- (10) Includes 14,515,956 shares of common stock subject to options and warrants which are exercisable within 60 days.
- Based on a Schedule 13G/A filed with the SEC by Revelation Special Situations Fund Ltd (formerly named Osmium Special Situations Fund Ltd) (the Fund ), Revelation Capital Management Ltd (formerly named Osmium Capital Management Ltd) (the Manager ), and Chris Kuchanny on February 14, 2012, to our knowledge, each of the foregoing entities and individual beneficially own 4,052,323 shares of common stock and warrants to purchase up to 1,750,000 shares of common stock. The amount and percentage disclosed in the table assumes the exercise of the warrants. The Fund and the Fund s investment manager, the Manager, share voting and dispositive power over the shares held directly by the Fund. Mr. Kuchanny, as a principal of the Manager, shares voting and dispositive power over the shares reported by it. Each of the Manager and Mr. Kuchanny disclaims beneficial ownership of these securities (except to the extent of any pecuniary interest therein).

#### Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

The federal securities laws require our directors and executive officers and persons who beneficially own more than 10% of a registered class of our equity securities to file with the SEC initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership of our securities. Based solely on our review of the copies of these forms received by us or representations from reporting persons, we believe that SEC beneficial ownership reporting requirements for 2011 were met.

6

#### INFORMATION ABOUT OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS

#### How does our Board of Directors operate?

Our Board of Directors consists of five members, H. Craig Dees, Timothy C. Scott, Eric A. Wachter, Kelly M. McMasters and Alfred E. Smith, IV. Dr. Dees, who is our Chief Executive Officer, serves as chairman of our Board of Directors. Two members of our Board of Directors, Dr. McMasters and Mr. Smith, are considered independent under the independence standards of the Nasdaq Stock Market.

Because our Board of Directors consists of only five members and our operations remain amenable to oversight by a limited number of directors, our Board of Directors has not delegated any of its functions to standing committees. Our entire Board of Directors acts as our audit committee, nominating committee, and compensation committee. Our Board of Directors has not adopted a nominating committee charter. Our audit committee charter is posted on our website at http://www.pvct.com/AuditCommitteeCharter.html, and our compensation committee charter is posted on our website at http://www.pvct.com/CompensationCommitteeCharter.html. The information on our website, however, is not a part of this Proxy Statement. Each member of our Board of Directors participates in the consideration of the compensation of our directors and executive officers. We believe that the leadership structure of our Board of Directors is appropriate given that we have only four employees. In addition, our entire Board of Directors is responsible for our risk oversight function due to the fact that we have only four employees, three of whom are members of our Board of Directors, and that our entire Board of Directors serves as our audit committee.

Two members of our Board of Directors, Dr. McMasters and Mr. Smith, are considered independent for purposes of audit committee independence under the independence standards of the Nasdaq Stock Market and the SEC. We do not have an audit committee financial expert, as defined under the rules of the SEC. We believe that all members of our Board of Directors are qualified to serve as the committee and have the experience and knowledge to perform the duties required of the committee. We believe that it has been, and may continue to be, impractical to recruit a director who qualifies as an audit committee financial expert unless and until we are significantly larger.

#### How often did our Board of Directors meet in 2011?

Our Board of Directors met one time and took action by unanimous written consent eighteen times during 2011. Each member of our Board of Directors attended or took action by unanimous consent more than 75% of the total number of meetings and actions of our Board of Directors and its committees on which he served. Members of our Board of Directors are encouraged to attend the 2012 annual meeting of stockholders. A majority of the members of our Board of Directors attended the 2011 annual meeting of stockholders either in person or via telephone conference.

#### **Director Nominations**

Our entire Board of Directors acts as our nominating committee. Our Board of Directors has no set procedures or policy on the selection of nominees or evaluation of stockholder recommendations and will consider these issues on a case-by-case basis. Our Board of Directors will consider stockholder recommendations for director nominees that are properly received in accordance with our bylaws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission. Our Board of Directors screens all potential candidates in the same manner. Our Board of Directors review will typically be based on all information provided with respect to the potential candidate. Our Board of Directors has not established specific minimum qualifications that must be met by a nominee for a position on our Board of Directors or specific qualities and skills for a director. Our Board of Directors may consider the diversity

7

#### **Table of Contents**

of qualities and skills of a nominee, but our Board of Directors has no formal policy in this regard. For more information, please see the section below entitled ADDITIONAL INFORMATION. Stockholders who wish to contact the members of our Board of Directors may do so by sending an e-mail addressed to them at info@pvct.com.

Each current director and candidate for reelection in Proposal 1 (election of directors) brings a strong and unique set of experience, qualifications, attributes and skills in a variety of areas. Set forth below are the specific experience, qualifications, attributes and skills of the nominees for reelection to our Board of Directors that led to the conclusion that the nominee should serve as a member of our Board of Directors.

H. Craig Dees is has extensive experience researching, developing, and testing potential pharmaceutical products, including our products. He holds a Ph.D. in Molecular Virology, which we believe provides us with specialized knowledge in that field.

Timothy C. Scott also has extensive experience researching, developing, and testing potential pharmaceutical products, including our products. He holds a Ph.D. in Chemical Engineering, which we believe provides us with specialized knowledge in that field.

Eric A. Wachter has extensive experience researching, developing, and testing potential pharmaceutical products, including our products. He holds a Ph.D. in Chemistry, which we believe provides us with specialized knowledge in that field.

Kelly M. McMasters, M.D., Ph.D., has clinical expertise in treating skin cancer, including melanoma, and surgical oncology. He has served as principal investigator, co-principal investigator or local investigator in over 30 clinical trials, including serving as principal investigator in a multi-institutional study involving 3,500 patients. We believe Dr. McMasters expertise in treating skin cancer and melanoma and experience with clinical trials provide our Board of Directors valuable insight into the testing of our pharmaceutical products.

Alfred E. Smith, IV is currently a Senior Advisor for the Marwood Group, a healthcare advisory and financial services firm, is Senior Advisor for Next Health, is Senior Advisor for K2 Global Consulting, N.A., LLC, and serves on the Boards for the Tony Blair Faith Foundation and Mutual of America Capital Management Corporation. He is active with various organizations to bring greater visibility and awareness to the fight against cancer.

### Report of our Board of Directors Acting as our Audit Committee

Our entire Board of Directors serves as our audit committee. Our Board of Directors in its capacity as our audit committee reviews our financial reporting process. In this context, our Board of Directors:

has reviewed and discussed with management the audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011;

has discussed with BDO USA, LLP (BDO USA), our independent registered public accountants, the matters required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61, as amended (AICPA, *Professional Standards*, Vol. 1. AU Section 380), as adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board in Rule 3200T; and

8

#### **Table of Contents**

has received the written disclosures and the letter from BDO USA required by PCAOB Rule 3526 ( Independence Discussions with Audit Committees ), as modified or supplemented, and has discussed with BDO USA the independent accountant s independence. Based on this review and the discussions referred to above, our Board of Directors determined that the audited financial statements be included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, for filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Our Board of Directors also appointed BDO USA as our independent registered public accountants for 2012.

This report is submitted on behalf of the members of our Board of Directors acting as the audit committee and shall not be deemed soliciting material or to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, nor shall it be incorporated by any general statement incorporating by reference this proxy statement into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, except to the extent that we specifically incorporate this information by reference and shall not otherwise be deemed filed under these Acts:

H. Craig Dees

Timothy C. Scott

Eric A. Wachter

Kelly M. McMasters

Alfred E. Smith, IV

9

#### **Table of Contents**

#### COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our entire Board of Directors serves as our compensation committee. The primary objectives of our Board of Directors acting as our compensation committee with respect to executive compensation are to attract, retain, and motivate the best possible executive talent. Our focus is to tie short and long-term cash and equity incentives to achievement of measurable corporate and individual performance objectives, and to align our executive officers—incentives with stockholder value creation. To achieve these objectives, our Board of Directors has maintained, and continues to develop, compensation plans that tie a substantial portion of executives—overall compensation to our scientific, medical and clinical milestones. For the remainder of 2012 and going forward, we will review this approach by taking into consideration commercial and operational performance as well.

Our Board of Directors has a pay-for-performance compensation philosophy, which is intended to bring base salaries and total executive compensation in line to ensure the competitiveness of the compensation packages we provide to our named executive officers. We expect to retain a compensation consulting firm with experience in evaluating public biopharmaceutical companies before we compensate our executive officers for the remainder of 2012 and going forward, beyond base salaries, because we have completed scientific, medical and clinical milestones which was the basis for compensation thus far in 2012, as well as in 2011 and prior years.

We work within the framework of this pay-for-performance philosophy to determine each component of an executive officer s initial compensation package based on numerous factors, including:

the individual s particular background and circumstances, including training and prior relevant work experience;

the individual s role with us and the compensation paid to similar persons in the companies represented in the compensation data that we review;

the demand for individuals with the individual s specific expertise and experience at the time of hire;

performance goals and other expectations for the position;

comparison to other executive officers within our company having similar levels of expertise and experience; and

uniqueness of industry skills.

Our Board of Directors has also authorized and implemented a quarterly and annual performance management program, under which quarterly and annual performance goals are determined and set forth in writing at the beginning of each calendar year for the corporation as a whole, and each individual employee. The compensation package components and structure was proposed by management and approved by the Board of Directors at the outset of its formation. These corporate goals specify the achievement of specific scientific, medical and clinical milestones. The Chief Executive Officer proposes goals which are closely tied to the annual corporate goals, the formation of which was approved by our Board of Directors. Annual goals focus on contributions which facilitate the achievement of specific corporate goals and are recognized during each quarter of the calendar year as appropriate. The Chief Executive Officer approves the goals proposed by our other executive officers. Any annual salary increases, quarterly and annual bonuses, and any annual stock option awards granted to our employees are tied to the achievement of the corporate goals, and each individual s contribution to the achievement of specific corporate goals.

10

#### **Table of Contents**

Notwithstanding the above, all compensation decisions for employees, including our Chief Executive Officer, are made in the sole discretion of the Chief Executive Officer as authorized by our Board of Directors. This policy is being reviewed for the remainder of 2012 and going forward to ensure any bonuses and stock option grants are made with the consideration of commercial and operational performance milestones as well as peer company compensation data once a peer group of companies has been identified.

#### **Compensation Components**

The components of our compensation package are as follows:

### **Base Salary & Employment Agreements**

On July 1, 2011, we entered into executive employment agreements with each of H. Craig Dees, Ph.D., Peter R. Culpepper, Timothy C. Scott, and Ph.D., Eric A. Wachter, Ph.D., to serve as our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer, President, and Executive Vice President, respectively. Each agreement provides that such named executive officer will be employed for a one-year term with automatic one-year renewals unless previously terminated pursuant to the terms of the agreement or either party gives notice that the term will not be extended. Each named executive officer s initial base salary is \$500,000 per year and is subject to adjustment by our Board of Directors. Named executive officers are also entitled to participate in any incentive compensation plan or bonus plan adopted by us without diminution of any compensation or payment under the agreement. Named executive officers are entitled to reimbursement for all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred during their performance of services under the agreements. Our named executive officers will be entitled to the payments upon termination of their employment, with or without a change of control, as described under the heading Potential Payments upon Termination or Change in Control below. Prior to July 1, 2011, each of our named executive officers was a party to executive employment agreement with substantially similar terms as the agreements entered on July 1, 2011.

We pay salaries to provide fixed compensation for the daily responsibilities of our named executive officers.

#### **Bonus Awards**

Our Board of Directors has adopted a longevity bonus policy to recognize service on our behalf when we reach significant milestones and to award quarterly and annual bonuses at the discretion of our Chief Executive Officer. In 2011, 2010 and 2009, we awarded bonuses for services rendered culminating with continued clinical trial development progress, especially due to the progression of the oncology and dermatology drug product candidates and other development in the clinic, which we refer to as the achievement of specific scientific, medical and clinical milestones. This policy is being reviewed for the remainder of 2012 and going forward to ensure any bonuses and stock option grants are made with the consideration of commercial and operational performance milestones as well as peer company compensation data once a peer group of companies has been identified.

### Defined Benefit Plan and 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan and Other Benefits

Our four employees, including our named executive officers, participated in the Provectus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Cash Balance Defined Benefit Plan and Trust (the Plan ), which was established in 2007. Employer contributions to the Plan were \$345,000 in 2009. In September 2010, we terminated the

11

#### **Table of Contents**

Plan for our employees. We transferred approximately \$1,353,000 in assets from the Plan to our 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan, which was formed in the three months ended September 30, 2010. Contributions to the 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan by us are discretionary. Contributions made by us in 2010 totaled approximately \$497,000 and include the amounts originally contributed to the Plan in 2010. Contributions by us in 2011 totaled approximately \$130,000. We maintain broad-based benefits that are provided to all employees, including health insurance, life and disability insurance, dental insurance, and a vacation policy that requires a minimum amount of vacation time used but provides for cash compensation in lieu of vacation taken if appropriate.

#### **Long-Term Incentives**

We believe that long-term performance is achieved through an ownership culture that encourages long-term participation by our executive officers in equity-based awards. Our Amended and Restated 2002 Stock Plan, or our 2002 Stock Plan, allowed the grant to employees of stock options, restricted stock, and other equity-based awards. The 2002 Stock Plan expired, by its terms, on April 22, 2012. At the 2012 annual meeting of stockholders, we are asking our stockholders to approve the 2012 Stock Plan, which will replace the 2002 Stock Plan if our stockholders approve the 2012 Stock Plan. If approved by stockholders, the 2012 Stock Plan will allow the grant to employees of stock options, restricted stock, and other equity-based awards. See Proposal 2 Adoption of the Provectus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 2012 Stock Plan on page 22 of this proxy statement.

Periodic annual grants of options to all of our employees are approved by our Board of Directors, the timing of which is not coordinated with the public release of nonpublic material information.

Our practice is to make periodic annual stock option awards as part of our overall performance management program. Our Board of Directors believes that stock options provide management with a strong link to long-term corporate performance and the creation of stockholder value. We intend that the periodic annual aggregate cumulative total of these awards will not exceed 10% of our fully diluted outstanding common and preferred shares. As is the case when the amounts of base salary and equity awards are determined, a review of all components of the executive officer s compensation is conducted when determining annual option awards to ensure that an executive officer s total compensation conforms to our overall philosophy and objectives. A pool of options is reserved for members of our Board of Directors to receive their annual grant and the pool of options is only increased for employees when approved by our stockholders.

#### Potential Payments upon Termination or Change in Control

Each of the employment agreements with our named executive officers generally provides that if the named executive officers semployment is terminated prior to a change in control (as defined in the agreement) (1) due to expiration or non-extension of the term by us; or (2) by us for any reason other than for cause (as defined in the agreement), then such named executive officer shall be entitled to receive payments under the agreement as if the agreement were still in effect through the end of the period in effect as of the date of such termination. If the named executive officer s employment (1) is terminated by us at any time for cause, (2) is terminated by the named executive officer prior to, and not coincident with, a change in control or (3) is terminated by named executive officer s death, disability or retirement prior to a change in control, the named executive officer (or his estate, as the case may be) shall be entitled to receive payments under the agreement through the last date of the month of such termination, a pro-rata portion of any incentive or bonus payment earned prior to such termination, any benefits to which he is entitled under the terms and conditions of the pertinent plans in effect at termination and any reasonable expenses incurred during the performance of services under the agreement.

12

Under each of the employment agreements with our named executive officers, in the event that coincident with or following a change in control, the named executive officer s employment is terminated or the agreement is not extended (1) by action of the named executive officer including his death, disability or retirement or (2) by action of us not for cause, the named executive officer (or his estate, as the case may be) shall be entitled to receive payments under the agreement through the last day of the month of such termination, a pro-rata portion of any incentive or bonus payment earned prior to such termination, any benefits to which he is entitled under the terms and conditions of the pertinent plans in effect at termination and any reasonable expenses incurred during the performance of services under the agreement. In addition, we shall pay to the named executive officer (or his estate, as the case may be), within 30 days following the date of termination or on the effective date of the change in control (whichever occurs later), a lump sum payment in cash in an amount equal to 2.90 times the base salary paid in the preceding calendar year, or scheduled to be paid to such named executive officer during the year of such termination, whichever is greater, plus an additional amount sufficient to pay United States income tax on the lump sum amount paid.

The following table shows the base salary compensation the named executive officers would have received under their employment agreements had a change in control occurred as of December 31, 2011 and had the named executive officers been terminated or their employment agreements not been extended.

Name	Amount
H. Craig Dees, Ph.D.	\$ 1,450,000
Timothy C. Scott, Ph.D.	1,450,000
Eric A. Wachter, Ph.D.	1,450,000
Peter R. Culpepper	1,450,000

Under the terms of our 2002 Stock Plan, which expired by its terms on April 22, 2012, and the proposed 2012 Stock Plan, prior to the occurrence of a change in control (as defined in the 2002 Stock Plan and 2012 Stock Plan), and unless otherwise determined by our Board of Directors, any stock options outstanding on the date such change in control is determined to have occurred that are not yet exercisable and vested on such date shall become fully exercisable and vested. In addition, unless otherwise determined by our Board of Directors, prior to the occurrence of the change in control, all stock options that are vested and exercisable will be terminated in exchange for a cash payment equal to the change in control price reduced by the exercise price of such stock options. As of December 31, 2011, none of our named executive officers had outstanding unvested stock options.

# Consideration and Effect of the Results of the Most Recent Stockholder Advisory Vote on Executive Compensation in Determining Compensation Policies and Decisions

Our executive compensation policies and practices have remained substantially the same for several years. We believe our programs are effectively designed and working well in achieving our business strategy. In determining executive compensation for 2011, our Board of Directors considered our stockholders—approval of our executive compensation at our June 23, 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. As a result, our Board of Directors continued to apply the same principles and philosophy it has used in previous years in determining executive compensation and will continue to consider stockholder feedback in the future. Nevertheless, in order to be as proactive as possible for the benefit of all stockholders, our compensation policies are being reviewed for the remainder of 2012 and going forward to ensure any bonuses and stock option grants are made with the consideration of commercial and operational performance milestones as well as peer company compensation data once a group of peer companies is identified, in addition to the achievement of specific scientific, medical and clinical milestones.

13

#### **Table of Contents**

#### Compensation-Related Risk Assessment

SEC regulations require that we assess our compensation policies and practices and determine whether those policies and practices are reasonably likely to result in a material adverse effect upon Provectus. Based upon a review by our Board of Directors and management of our compensation policies and practices, we have determined that our current compensation policies and practices are not reasonably likely to result in a material adverse effect on Provectus. In reaching this conclusion, we considered the multiple performance metrics in the annual incentive plan, combination of short-term and longer-term incentives, using periodic shareholder approved equity grants, stock ownership guidelines for executive officers, clawback of compensation in event of restatement of financial statements in cases of fraud, and a further review of our compensation policies in the future to maximize shareholder value.

#### Conclusion

Our compensation policies are designed to retain and motivate our employees; namely, our executive officers, and to ultimately reward them for outstanding individual and corporate performance.

#### COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Our Board of Directors, acting as the compensation committee, has reviewed and discussed with management the Compensation Discussion and Analysis appearing in this Proxy Statement. Based on the review and discussions noted above, our Board of Directors recommended that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this Proxy Statement and incorporated by reference into Provectus Annual Report on Form 10-K for 2011.

H. Craig Dees

Timothy C. Scott

Eric A. Wachter

Kelly M. McMasters

Alfred E. Smith, IV

14

#### SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

The table below shows the compensation for services in all capacities we paid during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 to our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer (2011 only) and our two other executive officers (whom we refer to as named executive officers):

Name and Principal Position	Year	Salary	Bonus		Option Awards <sup>(1)</sup>		ll Other pensation <sup>(2)</sup>	Total
H. Craig Dees CEO	2011	\$ 500,000 \$ 500,000	\$ 1,600,000	\$	821,022	\$	57,692	\$ 2,978,714
	2010 2009	\$ 500,000	\$ 1,600,000	\$ \$	927,205 46,187	\$ \$	57,692 43,269	\$ 3,084,897 \$ 1,107,975
Peter R. Culpepper CFO and COO	2011	\$ 500,000	\$ 518,519 \$ 1,600,000	\$	777,546	\$	57,692	\$ 2,935,238
Timothy C. Scott President	2011	\$ 500,000 \$ 500,000	\$ 1,600,000	\$	821,022	\$	57,692	\$ 2,978,714
	2010 2009	\$ 500,000	\$ 1,600,000 \$ 518,519	\$ \$	927,205 46,187	\$ \$	57,692 43,269	\$ 3,084,897 \$ 1,107,975
Eric A. Wachter EVP - Pharmaceuticals	2011	\$ 500,000 \$ 500,000	\$ 1,600,000	\$	821,022	\$	57,692	\$ 2,978,714
	2010 2009	\$ 500,000	\$ 1,600,000 \$ 518,519	\$ \$	927,205 46,187	\$ \$	57,692 43,269	\$ 3,084,897 \$ 1,107,975

15

The amounts in the Option Awards column represent grant date fair values computed in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification Topic 718, *Stock Compensation* (FASB ASC Topic 718). The assumptions used in determining the values of option awards are provided in Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements contained in our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011. Each named executive officer, other than Mr. Culpepper, is also a member of our Board of Directors. The fair value reflected in the Option Awards column for 2009 includes compensation for service in 2009 as a director of 50,000 stock options granted at an exercise price of \$1.04 on June 19, 2009, which was the fair market price on the date of issuance. The fair value reflected in the Option Awards column for service in 2010 as a director of 50,000 stock options granted at an exercise price of \$1.16 on June 18, 2010 and for service as an executive officer of 1,000,000 stock options granted at an exercise price of \$1.04 on July 22, 2010. The fair value reflected in the Option Awards column for 2011 includes, for Drs. Dees, Scott and Wachter, compensation for service in 2011 as a director of 50,000 stock options granted at an exercise price of \$1.04 on July 6, 2011 and for service as an executive officer of 1,000,000 stock options granted at an exercise price of \$0.93 on September 6, 2011, and for Mr. Culpepper for service as an executive officer of 1,000,000 stock options granted at an exercise price of \$0.93 on September 6, 2011. All the options vested immediately on the date of grant and expire ten years from the date of grant. For purposes of estimating the fair value of each stock option on the date of grant, we utilized the Black-Scholes option-pricing model which totaled \$43,476 in 2011, \$50,830 in 2010 and \$46,187 in 2009 for the 50,000 options and \$777,546 in 2011 and \$876,375 in 2010 for the 1,000,000 options.

<sup>(2)</sup> Amounts in this column represent unused vacation that was paid out.

### OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT 2011 FISCAL YEAR-END

The following table shows the number of equity awards outstanding as of December 31, 2011 for our named executive officers. All the options were exercisable as of December 31, 2011.

		Op	tion Awards	
	Number of Shares of	~ F		
	Common			
	Stock			
	Underlying			
	<b>Unexercised Options</b>		n Exercise	Option
Name	Exercisable		Price	Expiration Date
H. Craig Dees	18,750	\$	0.32	5/29/2013
	25,000	\$	0.60	5/29/2013
	300,000	\$	1.10	2/26/2014
	25,000	\$	0.95	5/27/2014
	300,000	\$	0.64	1/7/2015
	300,000	\$	0.75	5/25/2015
	25,000	\$	0.62	5/19/2015
	200,000	\$	0.94	12/9/2015
	50,000	\$	1.02	6/23/2016
	1,000,000	\$	1.02	6/23/2016
	50,000	\$	1.50	6/21/2017
	50,000	\$	1.00	6/27/2018
	50,000	\$	1.04	6/19/2019
	50,000	\$	1.16	06/18/2020
	1,000,000	\$	1.00	07/22/2020
	50,000	\$	1.04	07/6/2021
	1,000,000	\$	0.93	09/6/2021
Peter R. Culpepper	189,624	\$	1.10	2/26/2014
	100,000	\$	1.25	6/28/2014
	33,334	\$	0.75	5/25/2015
	175,000	\$	0.94	12/9/2015
	1,000,000	\$	1.02	6/23/2016
	1,000,000	\$	1.00	7/22/2020
	1,000,000	\$	0.93	09/6/2021
Timothy C. Scott	300,000	\$	1.10	2/26/2014
	25,000	\$	0.95	5/27/2014
	300,000	\$	0.64	1/7/2015
	300,000	\$	0.75	5/25/2015
	25,000	\$	0.62	5/19/2015
	200,000	\$	0.94	12/9/2015
	50,000	\$	1.02	6/23/2016
	1,000,000	\$	1.02	6/23/2016
	50,000	\$	1.50	6/21/2017
	50,000	\$	1.00	6/27/2018
	50,000	\$	1.04	6/19/2019
	50,000	\$	1.16	06/18/2020
	1,000,000	\$	1.00	07/22/2020
	50,000	\$	1.04	07/6/2021
	1,000,000	\$	0.93	09/6/2021
Eric A. Wachter	25,000	\$	0.95	5/27/2014
	14,248	\$	0.75	5/25/2015
	985,000	\$	1.02	6/23/2016
	50,000	\$	1.50	6/21/2017
	50,000	\$	1.04	6/19/2019
	,			

50,000	\$ 1.16	06/18/2020
50,000	\$ 1.04	07/6/2021
600,000	\$ 0.93	09/6/2021

16

#### OPTION EXERCISES AND STOCK VESTED

The following table provides information, for our named executive officers, on stock option exercises during 2011, including the number of shares acquired upon exercise and the value realized before payment of any applicable withholding tax and broker commissions.

	Option A	Option Awards		
	Number of Shares	Number of Shares Value Realized		
	Acquired on Exercise	on	Exercise	
Name	(#)		(\$)	
Dr. Dees				
Mr. Culpepper	133,333	\$	28,000	
Dr. Scott	100,000	\$	54,000	
Dr. Wachter	1,083,333	\$	26,583	
	FOURTY COMPENSATION DUAN INFORMATION			

The following table summarizes share and exercise price information about our equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2011:

Plan category	Number of securities to be issued upon exercise of outstanding options, warrants and rights	Weighted-average exercise price of outstanding options, warrants and rights		Number of securities remaining available for future issuance under equity compensation plans(1)
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders	14,890,956	\$ 0.98		1,550,000
Equity compensation plans not approved by security				
holders				
Total	14,890,956	\$	0.98	1,550,000

(1) This amount represents shares of common stock available for issuance under the 2002 Stock Plan as of December 31, 2011. Awards available for grant under the 2002 Stock Plan include stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, long-term performance awards and other forms of equity awards. The 2002 Stock Plan expired by its terms on April 22, 2012. We are asking stockholders to approve the 2012 Stock Plan to replace the 2002 Stock Plan at the 2012 Annual Meeting. See Proposal 2 Adoption of the Provectus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 2012 Stock Plan on page 22.

### DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Three of our five directors, Drs. Dees, Scott and Wachter, are also full-time employees. As discussed above under the heading COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, they are compensated for their service in those roles. Other than the options described below, they are not separately compensated for their service as directors.

None of our directors received cash compensation for their service as a member of our Board of Directors, although each is reimbursed for expenses incurred in fulfilling his duties as a director, including attending meetings.

#### **Table of Contents**

On the date of each annual meeting of stockholders, each member of our Board of Directors receives options exercisable for shares of common stock. In 2011, each of our directors received 50,000 options.

### **Director Compensation Table for 2011**

Name <sup>(1)</sup>	Fees Earned or Paid in Cash	Option Awards <sup>(2)</sup>	Other ensation <sup>(3)</sup>	Total
Kelly McMasters	\$	\$ 43,476	\$ 59,000	\$ 102,476
Alfred E. Smith, IV	\$	\$ 41,386	\$ 75,000	\$ 116,386
Stuart Fuchs <sup>(4)</sup>	\$	\$ 43,476	\$ 105,000	\$ 148,476

- (1) Our other three directors are also full-time employees whose compensation is discussed above under the heading COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS.
- A total of 50,000 stock options were granted to each of the above-named directors at an exercise price of \$1.04 for Dr. McMasters and Mr. Fuchs and \$0.99 for Mr. Smith, which was the fair market price on the date of issuance. The options vested immediately on the date of grant, July 6, 2011 for Dr. McMasters and Mr. Fuchs and July 12, 2011 for Mr. Smith and expire on July 6, 2021 for Dr. McMasters and Mr. Fuchs and July 12, 2021 for Mr. Smith. The amounts in the Option Awards column represent grant date fair values computed in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. The assumptions used in determining the values of option awards are provided in Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements contained in our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011. For purposes of estimating the fair value of each stock option on the date of grant, we utilized the Black-Scholes option-pricing model.

As of December 31, 2011, Mr. McMasters had a total of 200,000 stock options outstanding, and Mr. Smith had a total of 50,000 stock options outstanding.

- (3) We paid Dr. McMasters \$59,000 for consulting services performed in 2011. We paid Mr. Smith \$75,000 for consulting services performed in 2011. We paid Mr. Fuchs \$105,000 for consulting services performed in 2011.
- (4) Mr. Fuchs served on our Board of Directors until July 12, 2011. Mr. Fuchs was not independent in accordance with Nasdaq s listing standards.

#### COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION

Three members of our Board of Directors, which serves as our compensation committee, are officers of Provectus: Drs. Dees, Scott and Wachter. None of our executive officers has served on the board of directors or on the compensation committee of any other entity any of whose executive officers served on our Board.

#### PROPOSAL 1

#### **ELECTION OF DIRECTORS**

#### **Director Nominees**

The persons listed below have been nominated by our Board of Directors to serve as directors for a one-year term expiring at the annual meeting of stockholders occurring in 2013. Each nominee has consented to serve on our Board of Directors. If any nominee were to become unavailable to serve as a director, our Board of Directors may designate a substitute nominee. In that case, the persons named as proxies on the accompanying proxy card will vote for the substitute nominee designated by our Board of Directors.

H. Craig Dees, Ph.D., 60, has served as our Chief Executive Officer and as a member of our Board of Directors since we acquired Provectus Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a privately held Tennessee Corporation, on April 23, 2002. Before joining us, from 1997 to 2002 he served as senior member of the management team of Photogen Technologies, Inc., including serving as a member of our Board of Directors of Photogen from 1997 to 2000. Prior to joining Photogen, Dr. Dees served as a Group Leader at the Oak Ridge National Laboratory, and as a senior member of the management teams of LipoGen Inc., a medical diagnostic company which used genetic engineering technologies to manufacture and distribute diagnostic assay kits for auto-immune diseases, and TechAmerica Group Inc., now a part of Boehringer Ingelheim Vetmedica, Inc., the U.S. animal health subsidiary of Boehringer Ingelheim GmbH, an international chemical and pharmaceutical company headquartered in Germany. He earned a Ph.D. in Molecular Virology from the University of Wisconsin Madison in 1984.

**Timothy C. Scott, Ph.D.,** 54, has served as our President and as a member of our Board of Directors since we acquired PPI on April 23, 2002. Prior to joining us, Dr. Scott was as a senior member of the Photogen management team from 1997 to 2002, including serving as Photogen s Chief Operating Officer from 1999 to 2002, as a director of Photogen from 1997 to 2000, and as interim CEO for a period in 2000. Before joining Photogen, he served as senior management of Genase LLC, a developer of enzymes for fabric treatment, and held senior research and management positions at Oak Ridge National Laboratory. Dr. Scott earned a Ph.D. in Chemical Engineering from the University of Wisconsin Madison in 1985.

**Eric A. Wachter, Ph.D.,** 49, has served as our Executive Vice President Pharmaceuticals and as a member of our Board of Directors since we acquired PPI on April 23, 2002. Prior to joining us, from 1997 to 2002 he was a senior member of the management team of Photogen, including serving as Secretary and a director of Photogen since 1997 and as Vice President and Secretary and a director of Photogen since 1999. Prior to joining Photogen, Dr. Wachter served as a senior research staff member with Oak Ridge National Laboratory. He earned a Ph.D. in Chemistry from the University of Wisconsin Madison in 1988.

Kelly M. McMasters, M.D., Ph.D., 51, has served as a member of our board of directors since June 9, 2008. Additionally, Dr. McMasters served as chairman of our scientific advisory board. Dr. McMasters received his undergraduate training at Colgate University prior to completing the MD/PhD program at the University of Medicine and Dentistry of New Jersey, Robert Wood Johnson Medical School and Rutgers University. He then completed the residency program in General Surgery at the University of Louisville, and a fellowship in Surgical Oncology at M.D. Anderson Cancer Center in Houston. He is currently the Sam and Lolita Weakley Professor of Surgical Oncology at the University of Louisville in Kentucky, a position he has held since 1996. Since 2005, he has chaired the Department of Surgery at the University of Louisville and also has been Chief of Surgery at University of Louisville Hospital. Since 2000, he has also been Director of the Multidisciplinary Melanoma Clinic of the James Graham Brown Cancer Center at the University of Louisville. His is an active member of the surgery staff

#### **Table of Contents**

at the University of Louisville Hospital, Norton Hospital and Jewish Hospital in Louisville. He is on the editorial boards of the Annals of Surgical Oncology, Cancer Therapy and the Journal of Clinical Oncology as well as an ad hoc reviewer for 9 other publications. He holds several honors, chief among them is Physician of the Year awarded by the Kentucky Chapter of the American Cancer Society. He is the author and principal investigator (PI) of the Sunbelt Melanoma Trial, a multi-institutional study involving 3500 patients from 79 institutions across North America and one of the largest prospective melanoma studies ever performed. He has been a PI, Co-PI or local PI in over thirty clinical trials ranging from Phase 1 to Phase 3. For the past 12 years he has also directed a basic and translational science laboratory studying adenovirus-mediated cancer gene therapy funded by the American Cancer Society and the National Institutes of Health (NIH).

Alfred E. Smith, IV, 60, has served on our Board of Directors since July 12, 2011. Mr. Smith is currently a Senior Advisor for the Marwood Group, a healthcare advisory and financial services firm, is Senior Advisor for Next Health, is Senior Advisor for K2 Global Consulting, N.A., LLC, and serves on the Boards for the Tony Blair Faith Foundation and Mutual of America Capital Management Corporation, and formerly for Rica Foods, Inc. Smith began his career on Wall Street as an independent broker on the New York Stock Exchange in 1972. He subsequently joined Mitchell-Hutchins as Vice President, served as a Partner of CMJ Partners, and worked for Bear Wagner Specialists LLC as Senior Managing Director, until his retirement in 2006. Mr. Smith attended Villanova University.

#### **Transactions with Director Nominees**

We paid Dr. McMasters \$59,000 for consulting services performed in 2011. We paid Mr. Smith \$75,000 for consulting services performed in 2011. We paid Stuart Fuchs, who served as a director until July 2011, \$105,000 for consulting services performed in 2011.

OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT THE STOCKHOLDERS VOTE FOR EACH OF THE NOMINEES FOR ELECTION TO OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS NAMED ABOVE. Each proxy solicited on behalf of our Board of Directors will be voted FOR each of the nominees for election to our Board of Directors unless the stockholder instructs otherwise in the proxy.

20

#### PROPOSAL 2

#### ADOPTION OF THE PROVECTUS PHARMACEUTICALS, INC. 2012 STOCK

#### **PLAN**

Effective April 16, 2012, subject to approval of our stockholders, the Board of Directors (the Board ) adopted the 2012 Provectus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 2012 Stock Plan (the 2012 Stock Plan ) for the benefit of eligible officers, directors, employees, and consultants of Provectus. The 2012 Stock Plan replaces the Provectus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 2002 Stock Plan (the Prior Plan ). The principal provisions of the 2012 Stock Plan are summarized below. This summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the 2012 Stock Plan, which is set forth in Appendix A to this proxy statement.

#### **General**

The 2012 Stock Plan authorizes our Board to grant the following types of equity-based awards: options to purchase common stock that qualify as incentive stock options under Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code), options to purchase common stock that do not qualify as incentive stock options under Section 422 of the Code, which are referred to as non-qualified stock options, stock appreciation rights (SARs), stock purchase rights and long-term performance awards.

#### **Purpose**

The purpose of the 2012 Stock Plan is to enable us to provide an incentive to officers, directors, employees and consultants whose present and potential contributions are important to our continued success, to afford these individuals the opportunity to acquire a proprietary interest in Provectus, and to enable us to enlist and retain the best available talent for the successful conduct of our business. Upon adoption of the 2012 Stock Plan by our stockholders, no further grants will be made under the Prior Plan.

#### **Eligible Persons**

Subject to stockholder approval, six of our officers, directors and employees are eligible to participate in the 2012 Stock Plan, as well as consultants to us and our subsidiaries. Under the terms of the 2012 Stock Plan, incentive stock options may be granted only to employees, including those who serve as officers and directors.

#### **Shares Available for Issuance**

Subject to stockholder approval, we will be authorized to grant equity-based awards under the 2012 Stock Plan for up to 20,000,000 shares of common stock. If an award under the 2012 Stock Plan is forfeited or terminated for any reason, the shares of common stock that were subject to the award will again be available for future distribution under the 2012 Stock Plan. In addition, shares subject to SARs that are exercised for cash will again be available for distribution in connection with future grants of awards under the 2012 Stock Plan.

#### **Administration**

The 2012 Stock Plan may be administered by one or more administrators (the Administrator ) if our Board of Directors deems division of administration necessary or desirable in order to comply with applicable law. Because our Board of Directors has not appointed any committees and because we have so few employees, at present our Board of Directors is acting as the Administrator of the 2012 Stock Plan.

#### **Table of Contents**

The Administrator has the authority to determine the employees, consultants and non-employee directors who may receive awards under the 2012 Stock Plan (the Participants ) and to determine the type, size and terms of each award, to modify the terms of awards, to determine when awards will be granted and paid, and to make all other determinations which it deems necessary or desirable in the interpretation and administration of the Plan.

#### **Types of Equity-Based Awards**

Options. Options are rights to purchase a specified number of shares of common stock at a price fixed by the Administrator. Each option must be represented by an award agreement that identifies the option as either an incentive stock option within the meaning of Section 422 of the Code or non-qualified option, which does not satisfy the conditions of Section 422 of the Code. The award agreement also must specify the number of shares of common stock that may be issued upon exercise of the options and set forth the exercise price of the options. The exercise price for options that qualify as incentive stock options may not be less than 100% of the fair market value of the common stock as of the date of grant. The option exercise price may be satisfied in cash, by check, by exchanging shares of common stock owned by the Participant, delivery of a properly executed exercise notice along with sale or loan proceeds, other consideration permitted by applicable laws or by a combination of these methods. Options have a maximum term of ten years from the date of grant. To date, Provectus has not issued any options under the 2012 Stock Plan. The Administrator has broad discretion to determine the terms and conditions upon which options may be exercised, and the Administrator may determine to include additional terms in the award agreements.

Stock Appreciation Rights. SARs may be granted in connection with a previously or contemporaneously granted stock option or independently. SARs are rights to receive cash or shares of common stock, or a combination thereof, as the Administrator may determine. The Administrator may provide in the SAR agreement circumstances under which SARs will become immediately exercisable and may accelerate the exercisability of any SAR at any time. To date, Provectus has not issued any SARs under the 2012 Stock Plan.

SARs granted in connection with a stock option are exercisable only when and to the extent that the related stock option is exercisable and expire on the date on which the related stock option expires. If a SAR granted in connection with a stock option is exercised, the related stock option ceases to be exercisable. The amount of the payment for SARs granted in connection with stock options is equal to the excess of (i) the fair market value on the date of exercise of the SAR of the common stock covered by the surrendered portion of the related stock option over (ii) the exercise price of the stock option covered by the surrendered portion of the related stock option.

SARs granted independently of stock options are exercisable as specified in the award agreement. The amount of the payment for SARs granted independently of stock options is equal to the excess of (i) the fair market value of the common stock covered by the exercised portion of the SAR as of the date of such exercise over (ii) the fair market value of the common stock covered by the exercised portion of the SAR as of the last market trading date prior to the date on which the SAR was granted; provided, however, that the Administrator may place limits on the aggregate amount that may be paid upon exercise of a SAR.

Stock Purchase Rights. Stock purchase rights are rights to purchase a specified number of shares of common stock which may be restricted in accordance with the terms of the award agreement. The terms of stock purchase rights, including the restrictions and conditions of the offer, the number of shares of common stock that the offeree will be entitled to purchase, the price to be paid, and the time period in which the offeree must accept the offer, will be set forth in writing. Stock purchase rights must be exercised within thirty days from the date the stock purchase right is granted, unless the Administrator

22

#### **Table of Contents**

specifies a shorter period. After a Participant exercises a stock purchase right, he or she will have the rights equivalent to those of a stockholder, including the right to vote such shares and to receive dividends and other distributions thereon, subject to the restrictions set forth in the 2012 Stock Plan and in the award agreement. If shares of common stock are issued as restricted stock, they will be legended and may not be sold, transferred, or disposed of until the restrictions have lapsed. The Administrator has broad discretion as to the specific terms and conditions of each award, including applicable rights upon certain terminations of employment and restrictions on the transferability of stock purchased pursuant to stock purchase rights. To date, Provectus has not issued any stock purchase rights under the 2012 Stock Plan.

Long-Term Performance Awards. Long-term performance awards entitle the grantee to future payments based upon the achievement of employment or pre-established long-term performance factors. The award agreement for a long-term performance award will establish maximum and minimum performance targets to be achieved and the period in which the targets must be achieved. Thereafter, the Participant will be entitled to a payment in cash or shares of common stock upon the achievement of the performance targets within the performance periods. The Administrator has discretion to determine the Participants to whom long-term performance awards are to be made, the times in which such awards are to be made, the size of such awards, and all other conditions of such awards, including any restriction, deferral periods, or performance requirements. To date, Provectus has not issued any long-term performance awards under the 2012 Stock Plan.

#### Adjustments upon Change of Capitalization, Dissolution, Merger, Asset Sale or Change of Control

Changes in Capitalization. Subject to any required action by our stockholders, the number of shares of common stock covered by outstanding stock options, SARs, stock purchase rights or long-term performance awards, and the number of shares of common stock which have been authorized for issuance under the 2012 Stock Plan but as to which no award has been granted or which have been returned to the 2012 Stock Plan upon cancellation or expiration of an award, as well as the price per share of common stock covered by each such outstanding award, will be proportionately adjusted for any increase or decrease in the number of issued shares of common stock resulting from a stock split, reverse stock split, stock dividend, combination or reclassification of the common stock, or any other increase or decrease in the number of issued shares of common stock effected without receipt of consideration by us.

<u>Dissolution or Liquidation</u>. In the event of the proposed dissolution or liquidation of us, to the extent that stock options, SARs, stock purchase rights or long-term performance awards have not been previously exercised, they will terminate immediately prior to the consummation of such proposed action. Our Board of Directors may declare that any such award shall terminate as of a date fixed by our Board and give each Participant the right to exercise his or her award, including awards that would not otherwise be exercisable.

Merger or Asset Sale. Subject to the treatment of awards upon a change in control discussed below, in the event of a merger of Provectus with or into another corporation, or the sale of substantially all of our assets, each outstanding award will be assumed or an equivalent award will be substituted by the successor corporation or a parent or subsidiary of the successor corporation. In the event that the successor corporation does not agree to assume the award or to substitute an equivalent award, the Administrator will, in lieu of such assumption or substitution, provide for the Participant to have the right to exercise the award, awards that would not otherwise be exercisable.

Change in Control. In the event of a change in control (as defined in the 2012 Stock Plan) of Provectus, except as otherwise determined by our Board of Directors, (i) prior to the occurrence of the change in control, any outstanding awards on the date of such change in control that are not yet exercisable and vested on such date will become fully exercisable and vested, and (ii) prior to the occurrence of the change in control, all outstanding awards to the extent they are exercisable and vested, including accelerated awards will be terminated in exchange for a cash payment equal to the change in control price (as defined in the 2012 Stock Plan), reduced by the exercise price, if any, of such awards.

23

#### **Table of Contents**

#### **Transferability**

Awards may not be sold, pledged, assigned, hypothecated, transferred or disposed of in any manner other than by will or by the laws of descent or distribution and may be exercised, during the lifetime of the Participant, only by the Participant.

#### **Amendment and Termination**

Our Board of Directors may amend, alter, suspend or terminate the 2012 Stock Plan at any time. Any amendment to the 2012 Stock Plan must be approved by the stockholders to the extent such approval is required by the terms of the 2012 Stock Plan, the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission, or the rules and regulations of any exchange upon which Provectus stock is listed, if any. However, no amendment, alteration, suspension or termination of the 2012 Stock Plan may impair the rights of any Participant, unless mutually agreed in writing by the Participant and the Administrator.

#### **Federal Income Tax Consequences**

The following is a summary of the material anticipated United States federal income tax consequences of the 2012 Stock Plan to Provectus and the Participants. The summary is based on current federal income tax law, which is subject to change, and does not address state, local, or foreign tax consequences or considerations.

Stock Options. The grant of a stock option that does not have a readily ascertainable value will not result in taxable income at the time of the grant for either Provectus or the Participant. Upon exercising an incentive stock option, the Participant will have no taxable income (except that the alternative minimum tax may apply) and Provectus will receive no deduction. Upon exercising a nonqualified stock option, the Participant will recognize ordinary income in the amount by which the fair market value of common stock at the time of exercise exceeds the option exercise price, and Provectus will be entitled to a deduction for the same amount. The Participant s income is subject to withholding tax as wages.

The tax treatment of the Participant upon a disposition of shares of common stock acquired through the exercise of an option is dependent upon the length of time that the shares have been held and on whether such shares were acquired by exercising an incentive stock option or a nonqualified stock option. If an employee exercises an incentive stock option and holds the shares for at least two years from the date of grant and at least one year after exercise, then any gain or loss realized based on the exercise price of the option will be treated as long-term capital gain or loss. Shares obtained upon exercise of an incentive stock option that are sold without satisfying these holding periods will be treated as shares received from the exercise of a nonqualified stock option. Generally, upon the sale of shares obtained by exercising a nonqualified stock option, the Participant will treat the gain realized on the sale as a capital gain. Generally, there will be no tax consequence to Provectus in connection with the disposition of shares of common stock acquired under a stock option, except that Provectus may be entitled to a deduction in the case of a disposition of shares acquired upon exercise of an incentive stock option before the applicable holding periods have been satisfied.

Stock Appreciation Rights. The grant of a SAR will not result in taxable income to the Participant at the time of the award. Upon exercising the SAR, the Participant will recognize ordinary income in the amount by which the fair market value of the common stock or the amount of cash, as the case may be, exceeds the SAR exercise price, if any. Provectus will be entitled to a deduction for the same amount.

24

#### **Table of Contents**

The Participant s income is subject to withholding tax as wages. Upon a disposition of shares of common stock acquired through the exercise of the SAR, the Participant may recognize capital gain or loss, the character of which is dependent upon the length of time that the shares have been held. Generally, there will be no tax consequences to Provectus in connection with the disposition of shares of common stock acquired under a SAR.

Stock Purchase Rights. The federal income tax consequences of awards of stock purchase rights will depend on the facts and circumstances of each award, and in particular, the nature of the restrictions imposed with respect to the common stock which is the subject of the award. In general, if the common stock is subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture, i.e., limited in terms of transferability, a taxable event occurs only when the risk of forfeiture lapses. At that time, the Participant will recognize ordinary income to the extent of the excess of the fair market value of the common stock on the date the risk ceases over the amount that the Participant paid for the shares, if any, and Provectus will be entitled to a deduction in the same amount. Prior to the lapse of restrictions on the restricted stock, any dividends on such shares will be paid currently and will be treated as ordinary compensation income to the Participant, subject to withholding. Subsequent to the determination and satisfaction of the ordinary income tax consequences, any further gain or loss realized on the subsequent disposition of such stock will be a long- or short-term capital gain or loss depending upon the applicable holding period.

Alternatively, within thirty days after transfer of the restricted stock, a Participant may make an election under Section 83(b) of the Code, which would allow the Participant to include in income in the year that the restricted common stock is awarded an amount equal to the fair market value of the restricted stock on the date of such award determined as if the restricted common stock were not subject to restrictions. Provectus is then entitled to a compensation-paid deduction in the same amount. The election is required to be written and delivered to Provectus within that thirty-day period. The Participant is also required to confirm the election with the filing of the Participant s federal income tax return for the year in which the award is made. Failure to satisfy either of these requirements may invalidate the intended election. In the event of a valid Section 83(b) election, the Participant will not recognize income at the time that the restrictions actually lapse. In addition, any appreciation or depreciation in the value of the stock and any dividends paid on the stock after a valid Section 83(b) election are not deductible by Provectus as compensation paid. For purposes of determining the period of time that the Participant holds the restricted stock, the holding period begins on the award date when a Participant makes a Section 83(b) election. Further, any dividends received after the Section 83(b) election is made will constitute ordinary dividend income to the Participant and will not be deductible by Provectus. If the restricted stock subject to the Section 83(b) election is subsequently forfeited, however, the Participant is not entitled to a deduction or tax refund.

<u>Long-Term Performance Awards</u>. A Participant will realize ordinary compensation income upon receipt of a long-term performance award equaling the amount of cash or the current market value of the common stock received. Wage withholding rules will apply. Provectus will be entitled to a deduction at the time of payment in an amount equal to such income. Upon subsequent disposition of any shares of common stock received, any gain or loss will be a long- or short-term gain or loss, depending upon the applicable holding period.

#### **New Plan Benefits**

Because the awards to Participants may vary from year to year at the Board s discretion and any grant of Long Term Performance Award is contingent on attaining the related performance objectives, the amount payable to eligible Participants under the 2012 Stock Plan for any calendar year during which the 2012 Stock Plan is in effect cannot be determined.

25

#### **Table of Contents**

#### **Award Grants**

The grant of awards under the 2012 Stock Plan is at the discretion of the Administrator. The Administrator has not yet determined any additional awards that will be granted under the 2012 Stock Plan to Participants. See EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION Summary Compensation Table and DIRECTOR COMPENSATION Director Compensation Table for 2011 for information regarding the stock options granted in 2011 to our named executive officers and directors.

OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT STOCKHOLDERS VOTE FOR THE APPROVAL OF PROPOSAL 2 TO ADOPT OUR 2012 STOCK PLAN. Each proxy solicited on behalf of our Board of Directors will be voted FOR the approval of our 2012 Stock Plan unless the stockholder instructs otherwise in the proxy.

26

#### PROPOSAL 3

#### ADVISORY VOTE TO APPROVE THE COMPENSATION OF OUR

#### NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

As required pursuant to Section 14A of the Securities Exchange Act, we are submitting for stockholder advisory vote a resolution to approve the compensation paid to our named executive officers, as disclosed pursuant to the compensation disclosure rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission, including the compensation tables and related compensation discussion and analysis contained in this Proxy Statement.

At our 2011 annual meeting of stockholders, we provided our stockholders with the opportunity to cast an advisory vote to indicate if we should hold an advisory vote on the compensation of our named executive officers every one, two or three years, with our Board of Directors recommending an annual advisory vote. Because our Board of Directors views an annual vote as a good corporate governance practice and because more than 93% of the votes cast on the proposal at the 2011 annual meeting were in favor of an annual advisory vote, we are again asking our stockholders to approve the compensation of our named executive officers, as disclosed pursuant to the compensation disclosure rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission, including the compensation tables and related compensation discussion and analysis contained in this Proxy Statement.

Accordingly, the following resolution will be submitted for stockholder approval at the annual meeting:

RESOLVED, that the compensation paid to the Company s named executive officers, as disclosed as disclosed pursuant to the compensation disclosure rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission, including the compensation tables and related compensation discussion and analysis contained in this Proxy Statement, is hereby APPROVED.

The advisory vote on the compensation of our named executive officers is non-binding. The approval or disapproval of the resolution approving our executive compensation by our stockholders will not require our Board of Directors to take any action regarding our executive compensation practices. The final decision on the compensation and benefits of our named executive officers and whether, and if so, how, to address stockholder disapproval remains with our Board of Directors.

Our Board of Directors believes that it is in the best position to consider the extensive information and factors necessary to make independent, objective, and competitive compensation recommendations and decisions that are in our best interest and the best interest of our stockholders.

Our Board of Directors values the opinions of our stockholders as expressed through their votes and other communications. Although the resolution is non-binding, our Board of Directors will carefully consider the outcome of the advisory vote to approve the compensation of our named executive officers and those opinions when making future compensation decisions.

**OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE** *FOR* **THE APPROVAL OF THE COMPENSATION OF OUR NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS.** Each proxy solicited on behalf of our Board of Directors will be voted *FOR* the approval of the compensation of our named executive officers unless the stockholder instructs otherwise in the proxy.

27

#### PROPOSAL 4

#### RATIFICATION OF SELECTION OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

#### General

Our Board of Directors has selected BDO USA as the independent auditor to perform the audit of our consolidated financial statements for 2012. BDO USA has audited our consolidated financial statements since 2002. BDO USA is a registered public accounting firm.

Our Board of Directors is asking the stockholders to ratify the selection of BDO USA as our independent auditor for 2012. Although not required by law or our bylaws, our Board of Directors is submitting the selection of BDO USA to the stockholders for ratification as a matter of good corporate practice. Even if the selection is ratified, our Board of Directors, in its discretion, may select a different registered public accounting firm at any time during the year if it determines that such a change would be in the best interests of us and our stockholders.

Representatives of BDO USA are expected to be present at the annual meeting. They will have an opportunity to make a statement if they desire and will be available to respond to appropriate questions from our stockholders.

**OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE** *FOR* **THE RATIFICATION OF THE SELECTION OF BDO USA, LLP AS OUR INDEPENDENT AUDITOR FOR 2012.** Each proxy solicited on behalf of our Board of Directors will be voted *FOR* the ratification of the selection of BDO USA as our independent auditor for 2012 unless the stockholder instructs otherwise in the proxy. If the stockholders do not ratify the selection, the matter will be reconsidered by our Board of Directors.

#### **Audit and Non-Audit Services**

Our Board of Directors is directly responsible for the appointment, compensation, and oversight of our independent auditor. It is the policy of our Board of Directors to pre-approve all audit and non-audit services provided by our independent registered public accountants. Our Board of Directors has considered whether the provision by BDO USA of services of the varieties described below is compatible with maintaining the independence of BDO USA, LLP. In view of the fact that BDO USA provides no services to us other than audit services, our Board of Directors believes that such services do not jeopardize the independence of BDO USA.

The table below sets forth the aggregate fees we paid to BDO USA for audit and non-audit services provided to us in 2011 and 2010.

Fees	2011	2010
Audit Fees	\$ 203,000	\$ 208,000
Audit-Related Fees		
Tax Fees:		
All Other Fees		
Total	\$ 203,000	\$ 208,000

## **Table of Contents**

In the above table, in accordance with the SEC s definitions and rules, audit fees are fees for professional services for the audit of a company s financial statements included in the annual report on Form 10-K, for the review of a company s financial statements included in the quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, and for services that are normally provided by the accountant in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements; audit-related fees are fees for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of a company s financial statements; tax fees are fees for tax compliance, tax advice, and tax planning; and all other fees are fees for any services not included in the first three categories.

29

#### OTHER INFORMATION CONCERNING MANAGEMENT

#### **Executive Officers**

Drs. Dees, Scott, and Wachter serve as our Chief Executive Officer, President, and Executive Vice President Pharmaceuticals, respectively. Information about their business experience is set forth above under the heading, PROPOSAL 1 ELECTION OF DIRECTORS Director Nominees.

In addition, Peter R. Culpepper, 52, serves as our Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer and was appointed in February 2004. Previously, Mr. Culpepper served as Chief Financial Officer for Felix Culpepper International, Inc. from 2001 to 2004; was a Registered Representative with AXA Advisors, LLC from 2002 to 2003; has served as Chief Accounting Officer and Corporate Controller for Neptec, Inc. from 2000 to 2001; has served in various Senior Director positions with Metromedia Affiliated Companies from 1998 to 2000; has served in various Senior Director and other financial positions with Paging Network, Inc. from 1993 to 1998; and has served in a variety of financial roles in public accounting and industry from 1982 to 1993. He earned a Masters in Business Administration in Finance from the University of Maryland College Park in 1992. He earned an AAS in Accounting from the Northern Virginia Community College Annandale, Virginia in 1985. He earned a BA in Philosophy from the College of William and Mary Williamsburg, Virginia in 1982. He is a licensed Certified Public Accountant in both Tennessee and Maryland.

#### Code of Ethics

Our Board of Directors has adopted a code of ethics that applies to our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, or persons performing similar functions. The code of ethics contains written standards that are reasonably designed to deter wrongdoing and to promote: (1) honest and ethical conduct, including the ethical handling of actual or apparent conflicts of interest between personal and professional relationships; (2) full, fair, accurate, timely, and understandable disclosure in reports and documents that we file with, or submit to, the SEC and in other public communications made by us; (3) compliance with applicable governmental laws, rules and regulations; (4) the prompt internal reporting of violations of the code to an appropriate person or persons identified in the code; and (5) accountability for adherence to the code. The code of ethics is available without charge upon request from our Secretary, Provectus Pharmaceuticals, Inc., 7327 Oak Ridge Highway, Knoxville, TN 37931.

#### OTHER MATTERS

As of the date hereof, our Board of Directors knows of no business that will be presented at the meeting other than the proposals described in this Proxy Statement. If any other proposal properly comes before the stockholders for a vote at the meeting, the proxy holders will vote the shares of common stock represented by proxies that are submitted to us in accordance with their best judgment.

30

#### ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

#### Solicitation of Proxies

We will solicit proxies on behalf of our Board of Directors by mail, telephone, facsimile, or other electronic means or in person. We have retained Morrow & Co., LLC to assist us in the solicitation of proxies for the annual meeting. Morrow & Co., LLC will receive a base fee of \$7,500, plus reasonable expenses and fees, for these services. We will pay the proxy solicitation costs. We will supply copies of the proxy solicitation materials to brokerage firms, banks, and other nominees for the purpose of soliciting proxies from the beneficial owners of the shares of common stock held of record by such nominees. We request that such brokerage firms, banks, and other nominees forward the proxy solicitation materials to the beneficial owners, and we will reimburse them for their reasonable expenses.

## **Mailing Address of Principal Executive Office**

The mailing address of our principal executive office is Provectus Pharmaceuticals, Inc., 7327 Oak Ridge Highway, Knoxville, Tennessee 37931.

#### Stockholder Proposals for Including in Proxy Statement for 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

To be considered for inclusion in our proxy statement for the 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, a stockholder proposal must be received by us no later than the close of business on December 31, 2012. Stockholder proposals must be sent to Secretary, Provectus Pharmaceuticals, Inc., 7327 Oak Ridge Highway, Knoxville, Tennessee 37931. We will not be required to include in our proxy statement any stockholder proposal that does not meet all the requirements for such inclusion established by the SEC s proxy rules and Nevada corporate law.

## Other Stockholder Proposals for Presentation at 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

For any proposal that is not submitted for inclusion in our proxy statement for the 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, but is instead sought to be presented directly at the meeting, the SEC s rules permit management to vote proxies in its discretion if: (i) we receive notice of the proposal before the close of business on March 16, 2013, and advise stockholders in the proxy statement about the nature of the matter and how management intends to vote on such matter; or (ii) we do not receive notice of the proposal prior to the close of business on March 16, 2013. Notices of intention to present proposals at the 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders should be sent to Secretary, Provectus Pharmaceuticals, Inc., 7327 Oak Ridge Highway, Knoxville, Tennessee 37931.

By Order of our Board of Directors

Knoxville, Tennessee April 30, 2012 PETER R. CULPEPPER

Secretary

31

#### APPENDIX A

#### PROVECTUS PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

#### 2012 STOCK PLAN

## 1. Purpose of the Plan

The purpose of the Provectus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 2012 Stock Plan is to enable the Corporation to provide an incentive to Officers, Directors, Employees, and Consultants whose present and potential contributions are important to the continued success of the Corporation, to afford these individuals the opportunity to acquire a proprietary interest in the Corporation, and to enable the Corporation to enlist and retain in its employment the best available talent for the successful conduct of its business. It is intended that this purpose will be affected through the granting of (a) Options, (b) Stock Appreciation Rights, (c) Stock Purchase Rights, and (d) Long-Term Performance Awards. No Award under this Plan (or modification thereof) shall provide for deferral of compensation that does not comply with Section 409A of the Code unless the Committee, at the time of grant, specifically provides that the Award is not intended to comply with Section 409A of the Code. Notwithstanding any provision of this Plan to the contrary, if one or more of the payments or benefits received or to be received by a Participant pursuant to an Award would cause the Participant to incur any additional tax or interest under Section 409A of the Code, the Committee may reform such provision to maintain to the maximum extent practicable the original intent of the applicable provision without violating the provisions of Section 409A of the Code.

#### 2. Definitions

As used herein, the following definitions shall apply:

- (a) Administrator means the Board or such of its Committees as shall be administering the Plan, in accordance with Section 5 of the Plan.
- (b) Applicable Laws means the legal requirements relating to the administration of stock option plans under applicable securities laws, Nevada corporate law and the Code.
- (c) Award Agreement means a written agreement between the Corporation and a Participant that evidences the specific terms and conditions of an individual Option or Right, subject to the general terms and conditions of the Plan.
- (d) Board means the Board of Directors of the Corporation.
- (e) Change in Control means the occurrence of any of the following:
- (i) When any person, as such term is used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the Exchange Act (other than the Corporation, a Subsidiary or a Corporation employee benefit plan, including any trustee of such plan acting as trustee) is or becomes the beneficial owner (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of securities of the Corporation representing fifty percent (50%) or more of the combined voting power of the Corporation s then outstanding securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors; or
- (ii) The stockholders of the Corporation approve a merger or consolidation of the Corporation with any other corporation, other than a merger or consolidation which would result in the voting securities of the Corporation outstanding immediately prior thereto continuing to represent (either by remaining outstanding or by being converted into voting securities of the surviving entity) at least fifty

A-1

#### **Table of Contents**

percent (50%) of the total voting power represented by the voting securities of the Corporation or such surviving entity outstanding immediately after such merger or consolidation, or the stockholders of the Corporation approve an agreement for the sale or disposition by the Corporation of all or substantially all the Corporation s assets; or

- (iii) A change in the composition of the Board of Directors of the Corporation, as a result of which fewer than a majority of the directors are Incumbent Directors.
- (f) Change in Control Price means any one of the following, as determined by the Board:
- (i) the highest Fair Market Value of a Share within the 60-day period immediately preceding the date of determination of the Change in Control Price by the Board (the 60-Day Period ); or
- (ii) the highest price paid or offered per Share, as determined by the Board, in any bona fide transaction or bona fide offer related to the Change in Control of the Corporation, at any time within the 60-Day Period or such lower price as the Board, in its discretion, determines to be a reasonable estimate of the fair market value of a Share.
- (g) Code means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
- (h) Committee means a Committee appointed by the Board in accordance with Section 5 of the Plan.
- (i) Common Stock means the common shares, \$.001 par value, of the Corporation.
- (j) Corporation means Provectus Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a Nevada corporation.
- (k) Consultant means any person, including an advisor, engaged by the Corporation or a Parent or Subsidiary to render services and who is compensated for such services, and which services are in no way related to a capital raising transaction.
- (l) Continuous Status as an Employee or Consultant means that the employment or consulting relationship is not interrupted or terminated by the Corporation, any Parent or Subsidiary. Continuous Status as an Employee or Consultant shall not be considered interrupted in the case of: (i) any leave of absence approved by the Board, including sick leave, military leave, or any other personal leave; provided, however, that for purposes of Incentive Stock Options, any such leave may not exceed 90 days, unless reemployment upon the expiration of such leave is guaranteed by contract (including certain Corporation policies) or statute; or (ii) transfers between locations of the Corporation or between the Corporation, its Parent, its Subsidiaries or its successor.
- (m) Director means a member of the Board.
- (n) Disability means total and permanent disability as defined in Section 22(e)(3) of the Code.
- (o) Employee means any person, including Officers and Directors, employed by the Corporation or any Parent or Subsidiary of the Corporation. Neither service as a Director nor payment of a director s fee by the Corporation shall be sufficient to constitute employment by the Corporation.
- (p) Exchange Act means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

A-2

#### **Table of Contents**

- (q) Fair Market Value means, as of any date, the value of Common Stock determined as follows:
- (i) the average on the applicable date of the high and low prices of a share of Common Stock on the principal national securities exchange on which shares of Common Stock then are trading, or, if shares were not traded on such date, then on the next preceding date on which a trade occurred; or
- (ii) if shares of Common Stock are not traded on a national securities exchange but are listed on the Nasdaq Stock Market ( Nasdaq ), the last reported sale price on such date as reported by Nasdaq; or
- (iii) if shares of Common Stock are not traded on a national securities exchange and are not listed on Nasdaq, the closing bid price (or average bid prices) last quoted on such date by an established quotation service for over-the-counter securities; or
- (iv) if shares of Common Stock are not traded on such date, the fair market value of a share of Common Stock as established by the Board acting in good faith and taking into consideration all factors which it deems appropriate, including recent sale or offer prices for Common Stock in private arm s-length transactions.
- (r) Incentive Stock Option means an Option intended to qualify as an incentive stock option within the meaning of Section 422 of the Code and the regulations promulgated thereunder.
- (s) Incumbent Directors means Directors who either (i) are Directors as of the date the Plan is approved by the stockholders of the Corporation, or (ii) are elected, or nominated for election, to the Board of Directors of the Corporation with the affirmative votes of at least a majority of the Incumbent Directors at the time of such election or nomination (but shall not include an individual whose election or nomination is in connection with an actual or threatened proxy contest relating to the election of directors to the Corporation).
- (t) Long-Term Performance Award means an award under Section 9 of the Plan, evidenced by an Award Agreement, that permits the recipient to receive a cash or stock bonus (as determined by the Administrator) upon satisfaction of such Corporation, Subsidiary and/or individual performance factors or other criteria as the Administrator may deem appropriate and set out in the individual Award Agreement.
- (u) Nonqualified Stock Option means any Option that is not an Incentive Stock Option.
- (v) Officer means a person who is an officer of the Corporation within the meaning of Section 16 of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.
- (w) Option means a stock option granted pursuant to the Plan.
- (x) Option Exchange Program means a program whereby outstanding options are surrendered in exchange for options with a lower exercise price.
- (y) Optioned Stock means the Common Stock subject to an Option or Right.
- (z) Parent means a parent corporation, whether now or hereafter existing, as defined in Section 424(e) of the Code.
- (aa) Participant means an Officer, Director, Employee or Consultant who holds an outstanding Option or Right.
- (bb) Plan means the Provectus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Amended and Restated 2002 Stock Plan, as amended from time to time.

A-3

#### **Table of Contents**

- (cc) Restricted Stock means shares of Common Stock acquired pursuant to a grant of Stock Purchase Rights under Section 8 of the Plan and subject to an Award Agreement.
- (dd) Right means and includes SARs, Long-Term Performance awards and Stock Purchase Rights granted pursuant to the Plan.
- (ee) Rule 16b-3 means Rule 16b-3 of the Exchange Act or any successor rule thereto, as in effect when discretion is being exercised with respect to the Plan.
- (ff) SAR means a stock appreciation right granted pursuant to Section 7.2 of the Plan.
- (gg) Share means a share of the Common Stock, as adjusted in accordance with Section 12 of the Plan.
- (hh) Stock Purchase Right means the right to purchase Common Stock pursuant to Section 8 of the Plan, as evidenced by an Award Agreement.
- (ii) Subsidiary means a subsidiary corporation, whether now or hereafter existing, as defined in Section 424(f) of the Code.

#### 3. Eligibility

Nonqualified Stock Options and Rights may be granted to Employees and Consultants, including Officers and Directors who are Employees or Consultants, and to Directors who are not Employees. Incentive Stock Options may be granted only to Employees. If otherwise eligible, an Employee, Consultant or Director who has been granted an Option or Right may be granted additional Options or Rights.

## 4. Stock Subject to the Plan

The total number of Shares reserved and available for issuance under the Plan is 20,000,000 Shares. If any Shares that have been optioned under an Option cease to be subject to such Option (other than through exercise of the Option), or if any Option or Right granted hereunder is forfeited, or any such award otherwise terminates prior to the issuance of Common Stock to the participant, the Shares that were subject to such Option or Right shall again be available for distribution in connection with future Option or right grants under the Plan. In addition, Shares that have been subject to SARs exercised for cash, whether granted in connection with or independently of options, shall again be available for distribution under the Plan. Shares that have actually been issued under the Plan, whether upon exercise of an Option or Right, shall not in any event be returned to the Plan and shall not become available for future distribution under the Plan, except that if Shares of Restricted Stock were repurchased by the Corporation at their original purchase price, and the original purchaser of such Shares did not receive any benefits of ownership of such Shares, such Shares shall become available for future grant under the Plan. For purposes of the preceding sentence, voting rights shall not be considered a benefit of Share ownership.

#### 5. Administration

#### 5.1. Composition of Administrator

(a) Multiple Administrative Bodies. If required or permitted by Rule 16b-3 and Applicable Laws, the Plan may (but need not) be administered by different administrative bodies with respect to (i) Directors who are employees, (ii) Officers who are not Directors and (iii) Employees who are neither Directors nor Officers.

A-4

#### **Table of Contents**

- (b) Administration with respect to Directors and Officers. With respect to grants of Options and Rights to eligible participants who are Officers or Directors of the Corporation, the Plan shall be administered by (i) the Board, if the Board may administer the Plan in compliance with Rule 16b-3 as it applies to a plan intended to qualify thereunder as a discretionary grant or award plan, or (ii) a Committee designated by the Board to administer the Plan, which Committee shall be constituted (A) in such a manner as to permit the Plan to comply with Rule 16b-3 as it applies to a plan intended to qualify thereunder as a discretionary grant or award plan and (B) in such a manner as to satisfy the Applicable Laws.
- (c) Administration with respect to Other Persons. With respect to grants of Options to eligible participants who are neither Directors nor Officers of the Corporation, the Plan shall be administered by (i) the Board or (ii) a Committee designated by the Board, which Committee shall be constituted in such a manner as to satisfy the Applicable Laws.
- (d) General. Once a Committee has been appointed pursuant to Sections 5.1(b) and/or 5.1(c), such Committee shall continue to serve in its designated capacity until otherwise directed by the Board. From time to time the Board may increase the size of any Committee and appoint additional members thereof, remove members (with or without cause) and appoint new members in substitution therefor, fill vacancies (however caused) and remove all members of a Committee and thereafter directly administer the Plan, all to the extent permitted by the Applicable Laws and, in the case of a Committee appointed under Section 5.1(c), to the extent permitted by Rule 16b-3 as it applies to a plan intended to qualify thereunder as a discretionary grant or award plan.
- (e) Powers of the Administrator. Subject to the provisions of the Plan, and in the case of a Committee, subject to the specific duties delegated by the Board to such Committee, the Administrator shall have the authority, in its discretion:
- (i) to determine the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock, in accordance with Section 2(n) of the Plan;
- (ii) to select the Consultants and Employees to whom Options and Rights may be granted hereunder;
- (iii) to determine whether and to what extent Options and Rights or any combination thereof, are granted hereunder;
- (iv) to determine the number of shares of Common Stock to be covered by each Option and Right granted hereunder;
- (v) to approve forms of agreement for use under the Plan;
- (vi) to determine the terms and conditions of any award granted hereunder, which shall not be inconsistent with the terms of the Plan and shall include, but not be limited to, the exercise price, the time or times when Options or Rights may be exercised (which may be based on performance criteria), any vesting acceleration or waiver of forfeiture restrictions, and any restriction or limitation regarding any Option or Right or the shares of Common Stock relating thereto, based in each case on such factors as the Administrator, in its sole discretion, shall determine;
- (vii) to construe and interpret the terms of the Plan;
- (viii) to prescribe, amend and rescind rules and regulations relating to the Plan;

A-5

#### **Table of Contents**

- (ix) to determine whether and under what circumstances an Option or Right may be settled in cash instead of Common Stock or Common Stock instead of cash;
- (x) to reduce the exercise price of any Option or Right;
- (xi) to modify or amend each Option or Right (subject to Section 14 of the Plan);
- (xii) to authorize any person to execute on behalf of the Corporation any instrument required to effect the grant of an Option or Right previously granted by the Administrator;
- (xiii) to institute an Option Exchange Program;
- (xiv) to determine the terms and restrictions applicable to Options and Rights and any Restricted Stock; and
- (xv) to make all other determinations deemed necessary or advisable for administering the Plan.
- (f) Effect of Administrator s Decision. The Administrator s decisions, determinations and interpretations shall be final and binding on all Participants and any other holders of Options or Rights.
- 6. Duration of the Plan

The Plan shall remain in effect until terminated by the Board under the terms of the Plan; provided, that in no event may Incentive Stock Options be granted under the Plan later than 10 years from the date the Plan was adopted by the Board.

- 7. Options and SARs
- 7.1. Options

The Administrator, in its discretion, may grant Options to eligible participants and shall determine whether such Options shall be Incentive Stock Options or Nonqualified Stock Options. Each Option shall be evidenced by an Award Agreement which shall expressly identify the Options as Incentive Stock Options or as Nonqualified Stock Options, and be in such form and contain such provisions as the Administrator shall from time to time deem appropriate.

Without limiting the foregoing, the Administrator may at any time authorize the Corporation, with the consent of the respective recipients, to issue new Options or Rights in exchange for the surrender and cancellation of outstanding Options or Rights. Option agreements shall contain the following terms and conditions:

- (a) Exercise Price; Number of Shares. The per Share exercise price for the Shares issuable pursuant to an Option shall be such price as is determined by the Administrator; provided, however, that in the case of an Incentive Stock Option, the price shall be no less than 100% of the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock on the date the Option is granted, subject to any additional conditions set out in Section 7.1(d) of the Plan. The Award Agreement shall specify the number of Shares to which it pertains.
- (b) Waiting Period and Exercise Dates. At the time an Option is granted, the Administrator will determine the terms and conditions to be satisfied before Shares may be purchased, including the dates on which Shares subject to the Option may first be purchased. The Administrator may specify that an Option may not be exercised until the completion of the service period specified at the time of grant. (Any such period is referred to herein as the waiting period.) At the time an Option is granted, the Administrator shall fix the period within which the Option may be exercised, which shall not be earlier than the end of the waiting period, if any, nor, in the case of an Incentive Stock Option, later than 10 years from the date of grant.

A-6

#### **Table of Contents**

- (c) Form of Payment. The consideration to be paid for the Shares to be issued upon exercise of an Option, including the method of payment, shall be determined by the Administrator (and, in the case of an Incentive Stock Option, shall be determined at the time of grant) and may consist entirely of:
- (i) cash;
- (ii) check;
- (iii) other Shares which (A) in the case of Shares acquired upon exercise of an option, have been owned by the Participant for more than six months on the date of surrender, and (B) have a Fair Market Value on the date of surrender not greater than the aggregate exercise price of the Shares as to which said Option shall be exercised;
- (iv) delivery of a properly executed exercise notice together with such other documentation as the Administrator and the broker, if applicable, shall require to effect an exercise of the Option and delivery to the Corporation of the sale or loan proceeds required to pay the exercise price;
- (v) any combination of the foregoing methods of payment; or
- (vi) such other consideration and method of payment for the issuance of Shares to the extent permitted by Applicable Laws.
- (d) Special Incentive Stock Option Provisions. In addition to the foregoing, Options granted under the Plan which are intended to be Incentive Stock Options under Section 422 of the Code shall be subject to the following terms and conditions:
- (i) Dollar Limitation. To the extent that the aggregate Fair Market Value of (A) the Shares with respect to which Options designated as Incentive Stock Options plus (B) the shares of stock of the Corporation, Parent and any Subsidiary with respect to which other incentive stock options are exercisable for the first time by a Participant during any calendar year under all plans of the Corporation and any Parent and Subsidiary exceeds \$100,000, such Options shall be treated as Nonqualified Stock Options. For purposes of the preceding sentence, (1) Options shall be taken into account in the order in which they were granted, and (2) the Fair Market Value of the Shares shall be determined as of the time the Option or other incentive stock option is granted.
- (ii) 10% Stockholder. If any Participant to whom an Incentive Stock Option is to be granted pursuant to the provisions of the Plan is, on the date of grant, the owner of Common Stock (as determined under Section 424(d) of the Code) possessing more than 10% of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Corporation or any Parent or Subsidiary of the Corporation, then the following special provisions shall be applicable to the Option granted to such individual:
- (A) The per Share Option price of Shares subject to such Incentive Stock Option shall not be less than 110% of the Fair Market Value of Common Stock on the date of grant; and
- (B) The Option shall not have a term in excess of 10 years from the date of grant. Except as modified by the preceding provisions of this Section 7.1(d) and except as otherwise limited by Section 422 of the Code, all of the provisions of the Plan shall be applicable to the Incentive Stock Options granted hereunder.

A-7

#### **Table of Contents**

- (e) Other Provisions. Each Option granted under the Plan may contain such other terms, provisions, and conditions not inconsistent with the Plan as may be determined by the Administrator.
- (f) Buyout Provisions. The Administrator may at any time offer to buy out for a payment in cash or Shares, an Option previously granted, based on such terms and conditions as the Administrator shall establish and communicate to the Participant at the time that such offer is made.
- 7.2. Stock Appreciation Rights
- (a) In Connection with Options. At the sole discretion of the Administrator, SARs may be granted in connection with all or any part of an Option, either concurrently with the grant of the Option or at any time thereafter during the term of the Option. The following provisions apply to SARs that are granted in connection with Options:
- (i) The SAR shall entitle the Participant to exercise the SAR by surrendering to the Corporation unexercised a portion of the related Option. The Participant shall receive in Exchange from the Corporation an amount equal to the excess of (A) the Fair Market Value on the date of exercise of the SAR of the Common Stock covered by the surrendered portion of the related Option over (B) the exercise price of the Common Stock covered by the surrendered portion of the related Option. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Administrator may place limits on the amount that may be paid upon exercise of an SAR; provided, however, that such limit shall not restrict the exercisability of the related Option.
- (ii) When an SAR is exercised, the related Option, to the extent surrendered, shall cease to be exercisable.
- (iii) An SAR shall be exercisable only when and to the extent that the related Option is exercisable and shall expire no later than the date on which the related Option expires.
- (iv) An SAR may only be exercised at a time when the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock covered by the related Option exceeds the exercise price of the Common Stock covered by the related Option.
- (b) Independent of Options. At the sole discretion of the Administrator, SARs may be granted without related Options. The following provisions apply to SARs that are not granted in connection with Options:
- (i) The SAR shall entitle the Participant, by exercising the SAR, to receive from the Corporation an amount equal to the excess of (A) the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock covered by the exercised portion of the SAR, as of the date of such exercise, over (B) the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock covered by the exercised portion of the SAR, as of the last market trading date prior to the date on which the SAR was granted; provided, however, that the Administrator may place limits on the aggregate amount that may be paid upon exercise of an SAR.
- (ii) SARs shall be exercisable, in whole or in part, at such times as the Administrator shall specify in the Participant s SAR agreement.
- (c) Form of Payment. The Corporation s obligation arising upon the exercise of an SAR may be paid in Common Stock or in cash, or in any combination of Common Stock and cash, as the Administrator, in its sole discretion, may determine. Shares issued upon the exercise of an SAR shall be valued at their Fair Market Value as of the date of exercise.

A-8

#### **Table of Contents**

(d) Performance-Based Compensation Limitations. No Employee shall be granted, in any fiscal year of the Corporation, Options or SARs to receive more than 100,000 Shares of Common Stock, provided that the Corporation may make an additional one-time grant of up to 100,000 Shares to newly-hired Employees. The foregoing limitations shall adjust proportionately in connection with any change in the Corporation s recapitalization as described in Section 12.1.

#### 7.3. Method of Exercise

(a) Procedure for Exercise; Rights as a Stockholder. Any Option or SAR granted hereunder shall be exercisable at such times and under such conditions as determined by the Administrator and as shall be permissible under the terms of the Plan.

An Option may not be exercised for a fraction of a Share.

An Option or SAR shall be deemed to be exercised when written notice of such exercise has been given to the Corporation in accordance with the terms of the Option or SAR by the person entitled to exercise the Option or SAR and full payment for the Shares with respect to which the Option is exercised has been received by the Corporation. Full payment may, as authorized by the Administrator (and, in the case of an Incentive Stock Option, determined at the time of grant) and permitted by the Award Agreement consist of any consideration and method of payment allowable under Section 7.1(c) of the Plan. Until the issuance (as evidenced by the appropriate entry on the books of the Corporation or of a duly authorized transfer agent of the Corporation) of the stock certificate evidencing such Shares, no right to vote or receive dividends or any other rights as a stockholder shall exist with respect to the Optioned Stock, notwithstanding the exercise of the Option. No adjustment will be made for a dividend or other right for which the record date is prior to the date the stock certificate is issued, except as provided in Section 11 of the Plan.

Exercise of an Option in any manner shall result in a decrease in the number of Shares which thereafter shall be available, both for purposes of the Plan and for sale under the Option, by the number of Shares as to which the Option is exercised. Exercise of an SAR in any manner shall, to the extent the SAR is exercised, result in a decrease in the number of Shares which thereafter shall be available for purposes of the Plan, and the SAR shall cease to be exercisable to the extent it has been exercised.

- (b) Rule 16b-3. Options and SARs granted to individuals subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act ( Insiders ) must comply with the applicable provisions of Rule 16b-3 and shall contain such additional conditions or restrictions as may be required thereunder to qualify for the maximum exemption from Section 16 of the Exchange Act with respect to Plan transactions.
- (c) Termination of Employment or Consulting Relationship. In the event a Participant s Continuous Status as an Employee or Consultant terminates (other than upon the Participant s death or Disability), the Participant may exercise his or her Option or SAR, but only within such period of time as is determined by the Administrator at the time of grant, not to exceed six months (three months in the case of an Incentive Stock Option) from the date of such termination, and only to the extent that the Participant was entitled to exercise it at the date of such termination (but in no event later than the expiration of the term of such Option or SAR as set forth in the Option or Award Agreement). To the extent that Participant was not entitled to exercise an Option or SAR at the date of such termination, and to the extent that the Participant does not exercise such Option or SAR (to the extent otherwise so entitled) within the time specified herein, the Option or SAR shall terminate.

A-9

#### **Table of Contents**

- (d) Disability of Participant. In the event a Participant s Continuous Status as an Employee or Consultant terminates as a result of the Participant s Disability, the Participant may exercise his or her Option or SAR, but only within 12 months from the date of such termination, and only to the extent that the Participant was entitled to exercise it at the date of such termination (but in no event later than the expiration of the term of such Option or SAR as set forth in the Option or Award Agreement). To the extent that Participant was not entitled to exercise an Option or SAR at the date of such termination, and to the extent that the Participant does not exercise such Option or SAR (to the extent otherwise so entitled) within the time specified herein, the Option or SAR shall terminate.
- (e) Death of Participant. In the event of a Participant s death, the Participant s estate or a person who acquired the right to exercise the deceased Participant s Option or SAR by bequest or inheritance may exercise the Option or SAR, but only within 12 months following the date of death, and only to the extent that the Participant was entitled to exercise it at the date of death (but in no event later than the expiration of the term of such Option or SAR as set forth in the Option or Award Agreement). To the extent that Participant was not entitled to exercise an Option or SAR at the date of death, and to the extent that the Participant s estate or a person who acquired the right to exercise such Option does not exercise such Option or SAR (to the extent otherwise so entitled) within the time specified herein, the Option or SAR shall terminate.
- 8. Stock Purchase Rights

## 8.1. Rights to Purchase

Stock Purchase Rights may be issued either alone, in addition to, or in tandem with other awards granted under the Plan and/or cash awards made outside of the Plan. After the Administrator determines that it will offer Stock Purchase Rights under the Plan, it shall advise the offeree in writing of the terms, conditions and restrictions related to the offer, including the number of Shares that the offeree shall be entitled to purchase, the price to be paid, and the time within which the offeree must accept such offer, which shall in no event exceed 30 days from the date upon which the Administrator made the determination to grant the Stock Purchase Right. The offer shall be accepted by execution of an Award Agreement in the form determined by the Administrator.

## 8.2. Repurchase Option

Unless the Administrator determines otherwise, the Award Agreement shall grant the Corporation a repurchase option exercisable upon the voluntary or involuntary termination of the purchaser s employment with the Corporation for any reason (including death or Disability). The purchase price for Shares repurchased pursuant to the Restricted Stock purchase agreement shall be the original price paid by the purchaser and may be paid by cancellation of any indebtedness of the purchaser to the Corporation. The repurchase option shall lapse at such rate as the Administrator may determine.

#### 8.3. Other Provisions

The Award Agreement shall contain such other terms, provisions and conditions not inconsistent with the Plan as may be determined by the Administrator in its sole discretion. In addition, the provisions of Award Agreements need not be the same with respect to each purchaser.

#### 8.4. Rule 16b-3

Stock Purchase Rights granted to Insiders, and Shares purchased by Insiders in connection with Stock Purchase Rights, shall be subject to any restrictions applicable thereto in compliance with Rule 16b-3. An Insider may only purchase Shares pursuant to the grant of a Stock Purchase Right, and may only sell Shares purchased pursuant to the grant of a Stock Purchase Right, during such time or times as are permitted by Rule 16b-3.

A-10

#### **Table of Contents**

#### 8.5. Rights as a Stockholder

Once the Stock Purchase Right is exercised, the purchaser shall have the rights equivalent to those of a stockholder, and shall be a stockholder when his or her purchase is entered upon the records of the duly authorized transfer agent of the Corporation. No adjustment will be made for a dividend or other right for which the record date is prior to the date the Stock Purchase Right is exercised, except as provided in Section 12 of the Plan.

#### 8.6. Withholding Taxes

In accordance with any applicable administrative guidelines it establishes, the Committee may allow a purchaser to pay the amount of taxes required by law to be withheld as a result of a purchase of Shares or a lapse of restrictions in connection with Shares purchased pursuant to a Stock Purchase Right, by withholding from any payment of Common Stock due as a result of such purchase or lapse of restrictions, or by permitting the purchaser to deliver to the Corporation, Shares having a Fair Market Value, as determined by the Committee, equal to the amount of such required withholding taxes.

## 9. Long-Term Performance Awards

#### 9.1. Administration

Long-Term Performance Awards are cash or stock bonus awards that may be granted either alone or in addition to other awards granted under the Plan. Such awards shall be granted for no cash consideration. The Administrator shall determine the nature, length and starting date of any performance period (the Performance Period) for each Long-Term Performance Award, and shall determine the performance or employment factors, if any, to be used in the determination of Long-Term Performance Awards and the extent to which such Long-Term Performance Awards are valued or have been earned. Long-Term Performance Awards may vary from participant to participant and between groups of participants and shall be based upon the achievement of Corporation, Subsidiary, Parent and/or individual performance factors or upon such other criteria as the Administrator may deem appropriate. Performance Periods may overlap and participants may participate simultaneously with respect to Long-Term Performance Awards that are subject to different Performance Periods and different performance factors and criteria. Long-Term Performance Awards shall be confirmed by, and be subject to the terms of, an Award Agreement. The terms of such awards need not be the same with respect to each participant.

At the beginning of each Performance Period, the Administrator may determine for each Long-Term Performance Award subject to such Performance Period the range of dollar values or number of shares of Common Stock to be awarded to the participant at the end of the Performance Period if and to the extent that the relevant measures of performance for such Long-Term Performance Award are met. Such dollar values or number of shares of Common Stock may be fixed or may vary in accordance with such performance or other criteria as may be determined by the Administrator. Payment of any Long-Term Performance Award shall be made no later than 2 1/2 months after the end of the calendar year in which the Performance Period ends.

### 9.2. Adjustment of Awards

The Administrator may adjust the performance factors applicable to the Long-Term Performance Awards to take into account changes in legal, accounting and tax rules and to make such adjustments as the Administrator deems necessary or appropriate to reflect the inclusion or exclusion of the impact of extraordinary or unusual items, events or circumstances in order to avoid windfalls or hardships.

10. Performance Goals for Certain Section 162(m) Awards

A-11

#### **Table of Contents**

10.1 Definitions

For purposes of this Section 10, the following definitions shall apply:

- (a) Award means any form of Option, SAR, Stock Purchase Right, Restricted Stock, Long-Term Performance Award or other incentive award granted under the Plan, whether singly, in combination, or in tandem, to a Participant by the Committee pursuant to terms, conditions, restrictions and limitations, if any, as the Administrator may establish by the Award Notice or otherwise.
- (b) Covered Employee means an individual who is, with respect to the Company, an individual defined in Code Section 162(m)(3).
- 10.2 Section 162(m) Exemption

This Plan shall be operated to ensure that all Options and SARs granted hereunder to any Covered Employee qualify for the Section 162(m) Exemption.

10.3 Qualified Performance-Based Awards

When granting any Award other than Options or SARs, the Administrator may designate the Award as a Qualified Performance-Based Award, based upon a determination that the recipient is or may be a Covered Employee with respect to that Award, and the Administrator wishes the Award to qualify for the Section 162(m) Exemption. If an Award is so designated, the Administrator shall establish performance goals for the Award within the time period prescribed by Section 162(m) of the Code based on one or more of the following Qualified Performance Measures, which may be expressed in terms of Company-wide objectives or in terms of objectives that relate to the performance of a Subsidiary or a division, region, department or function within the Company or a Subsidiary:

- (1) return on capital, equity, or assets (including economic value created),
- (2) productivity or operating efficiencies,
- (3) cost improvements,
- (4) cash flow,
- (5) sales revenue growth,
- (6) net income, earnings per share, or earnings from operations,
- (7) quality,
- (8) customer satisfaction,
- (9) comparable store sales,
- (10) stock price or total shareholder return,
- (11) EBITDA or EBITDAR,
- (12) after tax operating income,
- (13) book value per Share,

A-12

#### **Table of Contents**

- (14) debt reduction,
- (15) strategic business objectives, consisting of one or more objectives based on meeting specified cost targets, business expansion goals and goals relating to acquisitions or divestitures, or
- (16) any combination of the foregoing.

Each goal may be expressed on an absolute and/or relative basis, may be based on or otherwise employ comparisons based on internal targets, the past performance of the Company or any Subsidiary, operating unit, business segment or division of the Company and/or the past or current performance of other companies, and in the case of earnings-based measures, may use or employ comparisons relating to capital, shareholders equity and/or Common Stock outstanding, or to assets or net assets. The Administrator may appropriately adjust any evaluation of performance under criteria set forth in this Section 10.3 to exclude any of the following events that occurs during a performance period: (i) asset write-downs, (ii) litigation or claim judgments or settlements, (iii) the effect of changes in tax law, accounting principles or other such laws or provisions affecting reported results, (iv) accruals for reorganization and restructuring programs and (v) any extraordinary non-recurring items as described in Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 30 and/or in management s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations appearing in the Company s annual report to stockholders for the applicable year. Measurement of the Company s performance against the goals established by the Administrator shall be objectively determinable, and to the extent goals are expressed in standard accounting terms, performance shall be measured according to generally accepted accounting principles as in existence on the date on which the performance goals are established and without regard to any changes in those principles after that date.

#### 10.4 Performance Goal Conditions

Each Qualified Performance-Based Award (other than an Option or SAR) shall be earned, vested and payable (as applicable) only upon the achievement of performance goals established by the Administrator based upon one or more of the Qualified Performance Measures, together with the satisfaction of any other conditions, such as continued employment, the Administrator may determine to be appropriate; however, (i) the Administrator may provide, either in connection with the grant of an Award or by later amendment, that achievement of the performance goals will be waived upon the death or Disability of the Participant, and (ii) the provisions of Section 12.4 shall apply notwithstanding this sentence.

#### 10.5 Certification of Goal Achievement

Any payment of a Qualified Performance-Based Award granted with performance goals shall be conditioned on the written certification of the Administrator in each case that the performance goals and any other material conditions were satisfied. Except as specifically provided in Section 10.4, no Qualified Performance-Based Award may be amended, nor may the Administrator exercise any discretionary authority it may otherwise have under the Plan with respect to a Qualified Performance-Based Award, in any manner to waive the achievement of the applicable performance goal based on Qualified Performance Measures or to increase the amount payable under, or the value of, the Award, or otherwise in a manner that would cause the Qualified Performance-Based Award to cease to qualify for the Section 162(m) Exemption.

A-13

#### **Table of Contents**

#### 11. Non-Transferability of Options

Options and Rights may not be sold, pledged, assigned, hypothecated, transferred or disposed of in any manner other than by will or by the laws of descent or distribution and may be exercised, during the lifetime of the Participant, only by the Participant.

12. Adjustments Upon Changes in Capitalization, Dissolution, Merger, Asset Sale or Change of Control

#### 12.1. Changes in Capitalization

Subject to any required action by the stockholders of the Corporation, the number of shares of Common Stock covered by each outstanding Option and Right, and the number of shares of Common Stock which have been authorized for issuance under the Plan but as to which no Options or Rights have yet been granted or which have been returned to the Plan upon cancellation or expiration of an Option or Right, as well as the price per share of Common Stock covered by each such outstanding Option or Right, shall be proportionately adjusted for any increase or decrease in the number of issued shares of Common Stock resulting from a stock split, reverse stock split, stock dividend, combination or reclassification of the Common Stock, or any other increase or decrease in the number of issued shares of Common Stock effected without receipt of consideration by the Corporation; provided, however, that conversion of any convertible securities of the Corporation shall not be deemed to have been effected without receipt of consideration. Such adjustment shall be made by the Board, whose determination in that respect shall be final, binding and conclusive. Except as expressly provided herein, no issuance by the Corporation of shares of stock of any class, or securities convertible into shares of stock of any class, shall affect, and no adjustment by reason thereof shall be made with respect to, the number or price of shares of Common Stock subject to an Option or Right.

#### 12.2. Dissolution or Liquidation

In the event of the proposed dissolution or liquidation of the Corporation, to the extent that an Option or Right has not been previously exercised, it will terminate immediately prior to the consummation of such proposed action. The Board may, in the exercise of its sole discretion in such instances, declare that any Option or Right shall terminate as of a date fixed by the Board and give each Participant the right to exercise his or her Option or Right as to all or any part of the Optioned Stock, including Shares as to which the Option or Right would not otherwise be exercisable.

#### 12.3. Merger or Asset Sale

Subject to the provisions of Section 12.4, in the event of a merger of the Corporation with or into another corporation, or the sale of substantially all of the assets of the Corporation, each outstanding Option and Right shall be assumed or an equivalent Option or Right substituted by the successor corporation or a Parent or Subsidiary of the successor corporation. In the event that the successor corporation does not agree to assume the Option or to substitute an equivalent option, the Administrator shall, in lieu of such assumption or substitution, provide for the Participant to have the right to exercise the Option or Right as to all or a portion of the Optioned Stock, including Shares as to which it would not otherwise be exercisable. If the Administrator makes an Option or Right exercisable in lieu of assumption or substitution in the event of a merger or sale of assets, the Administrator shall notify the Participant that the Option or Right shall be exercisable for a period of 15 days from the date of such notice, and the Option or Right will terminate upon the expiration of such period. For the purposes of this paragraph, the Option or Right shall be considered assumed if, immediately following the merger or sale of assets, the Option or Right to purchase, for each Share of Optioned Stock subject to the Option or Right immediately prior to the merger or sale of assets, the consideration (whether stock, cash, or other securities or property) received in the merger or sale of assets by holders of Common Stock for each Share held on the effective date of the transaction (and if holders were offered a choice of consideration.

A-14

#### **Table of Contents**

the type of consideration chosen by the holders of a majority of the outstanding Shares); provided, however, that if such consideration received in the merger or sale of assets was not solely common stock of the successor corporation or its Parent, the Administrator may, with the consent of the successor corporation and the participant, provide for the consideration to be received upon the exercise of the Option or Right, for each Share of Optioned Stock subject to the Option or Right, to be solely common stock of the successor corporation or its Parent equal in Fair Market Value to the per share consideration received by holders of Common Stock in the merger or sale of assets.

## 12.4. Change in Control

In the event of a Change in Control of the Corporation, then the following acceleration and valuation provisions shall apply:

- (a) Except as otherwise determined by the Board, in its discretion, prior to the occurrence of a Change in Control, any Options and Rights outstanding on the date such Change in Control is determined to have occurred that are not yet exercisable and vested on such date shall become fully exercisable and vested.
- (b) Except as otherwise determined by the Board, in its discretion, prior to the occurrence of a Change in Control, all outstanding Options and Rights, to the extent they are exercisable and vested (including Options and Rights that shall become exercisable and vested pursuant to subparagraph (i) above), shall be terminated in exchange for a cash payment equal to the Change in Control Price, (reduced by the exercise price, if any, applicable to such Options or Rights). These cash proceeds shall be paid to the Participant or, in the event of death of a Participant prior to payment, to the estate of the Participant or to a person who acquired the right to exercise the Option or Right by bequest or inheritance. All such payments made under this Section 12.4 shall be made no more than 2 1/2 months after the end of the calendar year in which the Change in Control occurs.

#### 13. Date of Grant

The date of grant of an Option or Right shall be, for all purposes, the date on which the Administrator makes the determination granting such Option or Right, as reflected on the Award Agreement. Notice of the determination shall be provided to each Participant within a reasonable time after the date of such grant.

- 14. Amendment and Termination of the Plan
- 14.1. Amendment and Termination

The Board may amend, alter, suspend or terminate the Plan at any time.

14.2. Effect of Amendment or Termination

No amendment, alteration, suspension or termination of the Plan shall impair the rights of any Participant, unless mutually agreed otherwise between the Participant and the Administrator, which agreement must be in writing and signed by the Participant and the Corporation.

15. Conditions Upon Issuance of Shares

A-15

#### **Table of Contents**

### 15.1. Legal Compliance

Shares shall not be issued pursuant to the exercise of an Option or Right unless the exercise of such Option or Right and the issuance and delivery of such Shares shall comply with all relevant provisions of law, including, without limitation, the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Exchange Act, the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, Applicable Laws, and the requirements of any stock exchange or quotation system upon which the Shares may then be listed or quoted, and shall be further subject to the approval of counsel for the Corporation with respect to such compliance.

#### 15.2. Investment Representations

As a condition to the exercise of an Option or Right, the Corporation may require the person exercising such Option or Right to represent and warrant at the time of any such exercise that the Shares are being purchased only for investment and without any present intention to sell or distribute such Shares if, in the opinion of counsel for the Corporation, such a representation is required.

## 16. Liability of Corporation

## 16.1. Inability to Obtain Authority

The inability of the Corporation to obtain authority from any regulatory body having jurisdiction, which authority is deemed by the Corporation s counsel to be necessary to the lawful issuance and sale of any Shares hereunder, shall relieve the Corporation of any liability in respect of the failure to issue or sell such Shares as to which such requisite authority shall not have been obtained.

#### 16.2. Grants Exceeding Allotted Shares

If the Optioned Stock covered by an Option or Right exceeds, as of the date of grant, the number of Shares which may be issued under the Plan without additional stockholder approval, such Option or Right shall be void with respect to such excess Optioned Stock, unless stockholder approval of an amendment sufficiently increasing the number of Shares subject to the Plan is timely obtained in accordance with Section 18(a) of the Plan.

## 17. Reservation of Shares

The Corporation, during the term of this Plan, will at all times reserve and keep available such number of Shares as shall be sufficient to satisfy the requirements of the Plan.

### 18. Stockholder Approval

- (a) The Corporation shall obtain stockholder approval of any Plan amendment to the extent necessary and desirable to comply with Rule 16b-3 or with Section 422 of the Code (or any successor rule or statute or other applicable law, rule or regulation, including the requirements of any exchange or quotation system on which the Common Stock is listed or quoted). Such stockholder approval, if required, shall be obtained in such a manner and to such a degree as is required by the applicable law, rule or regulation.
- (b) Continuance of the Plan shall be subject to approval by the stockholders of the Corporation within twelve (12) months before or after the date the Plan is adopted. Such stockholder approval shall be obtained in the manner and to the degree required under applicable federal and state law.

#### 19. Effect on Prior Plan

Any Options or Rights granted under the Provectus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 2002 Stock Plan (the Prior Plan ) shall remain outstanding and hereafter shall be governed by the terms of the Prior Plan.

A-16